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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Yes Capital (India) PrivateLimited

Report on the Audit of the ConsolidatedInd ASFinancial Statements
Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Yes Capital
(India) Private Limited(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company
and its subsidiaries together referred to as (“the Group”) which comprise the Consolidated
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“the Consolidated Financial Statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
except for the effect of the matters described in the Basis of Qualified Section of our report, the
aforesaid Consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the India Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015, as amended, (“Ind As”) and other
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the
Group as at March 31, 2024, their consolidatedProfit and consolidated total comprehensive
income, consolidated changes in equityand its consolidated cash flows for the year ended on
that date.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

1. Based on the records produced before us and according to information and explanations
provided to us, a First Information Report (FIR) was registered by the Central Bureau of
Investigation (CBI), EO-1 on 7th March 2020 on the basis of which an ECIR and thereafter a
Charge sheet as well as supplementary charge sheet on the same day was also filed by the
Directorate of Enforcement under Section 3 and 4 of the Prevention of Money Laundering
Act, 2002, on the same date, relating to a purported conspiracy between April - June 2018,
against the Company, its group company namely DOIT Urban Ventures Private Limited
(DUVPL) and the Promoters of the Company, interalia, in respect of a Loan amounting to
Rs. 600 crores which was sanctioned by M/s. Dewan Housing Finance Limited (DHFL) in
the earlier years, and is reflected as Borrowings in the books of the group company.
Subsequently, the Company has received Provisional Attachment Orders in relation to the
above ECIR which includes attachment of bank accounts, balance in Fixed Deposits, Mutual
Funds, paintings and immovable properties of the Company and other promoter group
entities.
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On account of above stated legal proceedings, pending final outcome, we are unable to
ascertain the extent of liability that may arise on the Company since the accounting and
disclosure for contingent/legal liabilities is complex and judgmental due to the difficulty in
predicting the outcome of the matter and inter alia, estimating the potential impact on the
Standalone Financial Ind As Statements, if the outcome is unfavourable, and if the amount
involved is, or can be, material to the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements as a whole,
Refer Note No. 54to the ConsolidatedInd AS Financial Statements in this context.

Refer Note No. 9, regarding Other financial assets which includes Input Tax Credit
recoverable balance under the head “Balance with government authorities”, which was not
charged off to revenue by the Holding Company, to be in line with Section 17(2) the Goods
and Services Tax Act, amounting to Rs. 2717 Thousands, with a view to utilize the same in
near future having consequential monetary impact on the respective assets and Loss for the
year to the above extent.

Refer Note No. 75 where a group Company have not accounted for Interest Income on the
basis of waiver request received by the Holding Company on account of ongoing
Investigation on promoters as well as Financial crises at group level, having consequential
impact on the profit and assets aggregating to Rs. 57,356.27thousands.

Refer Note No. 59 where in case of 2 subsidiary companies there has been no business
activities and in case of 1 subsidiary company there has been a decrease in the business
activities. Further as per Note 74 a group company hasaccumulated losses and their Net
Worth has eroded. However, the respective Company’s Ind AS financial statements are
prepared on going concern basis since the management is hopeful to reviving the
operations of the Company and also based on the commitment by the Holding Company to
extend financial support to the respective companies for meeting the obligations expected
to arise in foreseeable future.

Refer Note no. 72 and 73where, during the year, ART P2P Pvt Ltd, Brandcanvas Pvt Ltd and
Art Insurance LLP the subsidiaries of the company had applied for strike off in the
previous year and had submitted relevant documents with the Registrar of Companies
(ROC), New Delhi. As on the date of the financials, the approval from ROC was received
for the strike off for 2 Companies and the approval from ROC was awaitedin case of one
Company.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under

section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of
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our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (CAI) together with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of
the Actand the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics issued by the ICAL We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the consolidated financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

L. During the earlier financial year, a FIR was registered by Central Bureau of Investigation
(CBI), on 7th March 2020 against one of the Group Company, On the Basis of the aforesaid
FIR, Enforcement Directorate (ED) also filed an ECIR and thereafter a Charge sheetas well
as supplementary charge sheet on the same day dated 7th March 2020 and was carrying out
investigations in this regard. Further, subsequent to the earlier year, Provisional
Attachment Orders were issued by ED, attaching the fixed deposits, investments and bank
accounts of the Company having an aggregate balance of Rs. 125,927thousandsas on March
31, 2024. The management has filed an application with the Adjudicating Authority of ED,
New Delhi.

2. Attention is drawn to Note No. 58 of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements
regarding a merger application filed by the Holding Company with National Company
Law Tribunal (NCLT), New Delhi from Ist April, 2020 pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or re-
enactment thereof) between the Holding Company, its subsidiary and its sub subsidiaries.
Based on the application filed, the NCLT has directed the petitioners to serve notice of the
proposed scheme on the concerned Regional Director, ROC, Official Liquidator, Income
Tax department, CIC Division of RBI and other sectoral regulators having significant

3. Attention is invited to note no. 71 where 4subsidiary Companies did not have any
Company Secretary for the year/part of the year as required by the Companies Act, 2013,
The respective companies are in the process of appointing a Company Secretary as at the
close of the Balance Sheet date.

4. During the financial year, in case of one subsidiary, by virtue of a Share purchase

shareholding of Ambience Hospitality Management Private Limited (AHMPL) along with
its subsidiary company Ambience Hospitality Private Limited (AHPL). Further, an
assignment agreement was also entered by the subsidiary company, where certain loans
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ghts, title and interest and any underlying security,

T respect of such loans against payment made by the
earing the books of the assignor company.

Our report is not modified in respect of the above matters,

Key Audit Matters

interest, pledge and/or guarantees i
subsidiary towards loan liability app
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Key Audit Matter

Auditor’s Response

Subjective Estimate
1. Recognition and measurement. of
impairment . relating to loans and

advances to customer involves
significant management
judgement.

As per Ind AS 109 credit loss

assessment is now based on Expected
Credit Loss (ECL) Model and applicable
to the Group.

The Impairment Loss provision is
computed based on management
estimates including the historical

default and loss ratios. Management
exercises judgement in determining the
quantum of loss based on range of
factors.

The most significant areas involving
significant measures estimates are:

e Loan Staging criteria

e (Calculation of probability of

default/loss given default/Exposure
at default

e Consideration of probability

weighted scenarios and forward

looking macro-economic factors.

Ind AS 109 requires an entity to
determine Expected Credit Loss (ECL)
amount on a probability weighted basis.
There is a large increase in the data
inputs required for the computation of
ECL. This increases the risk of
completeness and accuracy of the data
that has been used as a basis of
significant assumptions in the model.

Our Audit procedures included considering the
appropriateness of the Group’s accounting policies
for impairment of financial assets and assessing
compliance with Ind AS 109.

Understood Group’s new processes, systems
and controls implemented relating to
impairment allowance process including
governance controls over the development and
implementation of the ECL model;

Test checked the design and implementation of

key internal financial controls over loan
impairment process used to calculate the
impairment charge and test checked
management review controls over

measurement of impairment allowances and
disclosures in the financial statements.

‘Evaluated appropriateness of the impairment

principles based on the requirements of Ind AS
109 considering our business understanding
and industry practice.

Performed  substantive  procedures over
validating completeness and accuracy of the
data and reasonableness of assumptions used in
the model;

Broadly evaluated management’s judgement in

the determination of ECL;

Performed cut off procedures on a sample basis
relating to recoveries at year end that would
impact staging of financial assets.

307, Chartered House, 297/299, Dr. C. H. Street, Near Marine Lines Church, Mumbai - 400 002, India.
Tel. - 91-22-4031 1900 e« E-mail : malpani_s@smalpani.com « Website : www.smalpani.com

DELHI = INDORE + JAIPUR



conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
theConsolidatedFinancial Statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the
ConsolidatedInd AS Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section
134(5) of the Act, with respect to the preparation of these Consolidated Financial Statements

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonasble and prudent; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated financial statement that give a
true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Director is responsible for assessing the group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do s0.

TheHolding Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

307, Chartered House, 297/299, Dr. C. H. Street, Near Marine Lines Church, Mumbai - 400 002, India.
Tel. : 91-22-4031 1900 * E-mail - malpani_s@smalpani.com * Website - www.smalpani.com

DELHI « INDORE - JAIPUR




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the ConsolidatedInd AS financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
Statements. As a part of an audit in accordance with the SAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the Audit.

We also:

* Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
of our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing an opinion on whether the Group has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. Ifwe conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial Statementsor, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* [Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial Statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.
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Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements jn the consolidated financial Statements that,
individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial Statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work: and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the consolidated financial Statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about ‘the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a

Other Matters

We did not audit the Financial statements of three subsidiary companies whose Financial
Statements  reflects total assets of Rg 109,507thousands, total revenues of Rg
17,316thousandsand net cash inflow of Rs, 1,767thousandsfor the year ended on that date, as
considered in the consolidated financial statements, which has been audited by other auditors,
which financial statements, other financial information and auditor’s report has been furnished
to us by the Management.Oyr opinion on the consolidated financial Statements, in so far as it
relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of the said entities, and our report in
terms of sub-sections (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in s0 far as it relates to the aforesaid entities

Our opinion above on the Consolidated Financial Statements and our report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with
Tespect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,

‘\‘{.?‘ 'k\. /
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information of the companies incorporatéd in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter’
paragraph we give in the. “Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in
paragraph 3(xxi) of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We/the other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained
all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Group so far as it appears from our examination of those books and report of the
other auditors;

Report are in agreement with the relevant books of accounts,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors of the holding
Company as on 31stMarch, 2024 taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed
under Section 139 of the Act, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31stMarch,
2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Group and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure 2”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on
the adequacyand operating effectiveness of the Group’s internal financial controls

over financial reporting.

h) With respect to the -other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
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given to usand based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on
separate financial statements: :

i.

il

1.

1v.

The Groupdoes not have any pending litigations which would impact its
consolidated financial position as at 315t March 2024;

The Group does not have long-term contracts including derivative contracts
requiring provision for material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Group.

a) The respective managementsof the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financials statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested(either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by theHolding Company
or any of such subsidiaries
toorinanyotherpersonsorentities,includingforeignentities(”Intermediaries”),with
theunderstanding,whetherrecordedinwritingorotherwise,thatthelntermediarysh
all directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any mannerwhatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the
respective Holding or any of such subsidiaries or provide anyguarantee,security
orthe likeon behalfof the UltimateBeneficiaries.

b) The respective managementsof the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
which are companies incorporated in India whose financials statements have
been audited under the Act have represented to us and the other auditors of
such subsidiaries respectively that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries
from any personsor entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with
the understanding, whetherrecordedinwritingorotherwise,thattheHolding
Companyor any of such subsidiaries shall, direc tlyorindirectly, lendorinvestin other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”)byoronbehalfoftheFundingPartiesorprovideanyguarantee,security
orthelikeonbehalfof the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

¢) Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, performed by us and those
performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated
in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing
has come to our or other auditor’s notice that has caused us or the other auditors
to believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e)
contain any material mis- statement.
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Vi,

TheHolding company or its subsidiaries had neither declared any dividend in the
previous year nor paid any dividendduringthecurrentyear.

feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the respective
software. Further, during the course of our audit, we and the other auditors,
whose reports have been furnished to us by the management of the Parent
Company, have not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being
tampered with,

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable
from April 1, 2023, reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the statutory

ForSMMP &Company
Chartered Accountants
. Firm Regjstration No. 120438W

‘ ; - ‘) Mudit Lakhotia
S S— Partner
Membership No. - 417827

UDIN No. 24417827BKGHSL8335

Mumbai, dated: 30t September, 2024
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(Referred to in paragraph 1 of under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our
Report of even date)

Annexure 1 to the Auditors’ Report

There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in the
Companies (Auditors Report) Order. (CARO) reports of the companies included in the
consolidated financial statements except the following:

As per Para iii of the Order, in case of 1 subsidiary, the recovery of interest and principal
in respect of the loans granted/continued from the earlier years was not as stipulated,
Out of a total loans granted and continued from earlier years amounting of
25,66,748.74thousands, principal amount aggregating to Rs. 227,386.96thousands was
overdue. The current year’s interest aggregating to Rs. 5786.96thousands overdue

As per Para xvi of the Order, the group has more than one Core Investment Company
(CIC) within the Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2016). On our examination of records provided by the Holding Company,
there are a total of 14 CIC (including CICs exempt from registration) in the group.

ForSMMP & Company

Chartered Accountants

 Firm Registration No. -120438wW
& &

N Mudit Lakhotia
. ° Partner
""""""" Membership No. 417827
UDIN No. 24417827BKGHSL8335

Mumbai, dated: 30th September, 2024
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report on the ConsolidatedInd AS Financial
Statement

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Yes Capital (India)
Private Limited(“the Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”) as of 31st March, 2024 in conjunction with our
audit of the ConsolidatedInd AS financial Statements of the Company comprising of the
Consolidated Balance Sheet ag at March 3152024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
including Consolidated Comprehensive Income, Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
and Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the period then ended,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls:

The Holding Company’sBoard of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining
internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Group considering the essentia] components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financia] controls that were Operating

internal financial contro]s system over financia] reporting and their operating effectiveness Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an

...........
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understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
Mmaterial weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of

Statements, whether due to fraud or error.

(1) Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Group;

(2) Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial Statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Group are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Group; and

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding - prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Group's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial Statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reportin s
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ForSMM P &Company
N Chartered Accountants
-\ Firm Registrdtion No. 120438W

: ; Mudit Lakhotia
o Partner
Membership No. - 417827

UDIN No. 24417827BKGHSL8335

Mumbai, dated: 30th September, 2024
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Yes Cagital {India) Private Limited
Consolidated Balance sheet as at 315t March 2024
(Al amounts in INR thousands, unbess otherwise stated)

Netes As at Ax at
31st March 2024 31st March 2023

ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash eguivalents 4 1,01,118 67,061
Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents 4, 78,044 2.99.914
Recavable
-Trade receivables 5 5.008 -
Laans [} 36,31,152 33,65,502
Inwentories 7 5,909 -
Inwestments ] 241132 2, 30822
Other financial assets q 1,02,880 35,542
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets (Met) 25,442 G064
Deferred tax assets |(Met) 16 ), 608 53,938
Froperty, plant and eguipment 10 22,231 11,680
Right-of-ude assets 10 3,076 2,347
Investment Properties 1,24,5595
Goodwill on Consolidation 12,57.542 2,03,653
Other intangible assets 10 1,996 3,319
Other nan-financial assets 11 83,149 64,703
TOTAL ASSETS 61,24, 780 43,444,547
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
LIABILITIES
Financial Liabilities
Trade payables

{3] Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 4,281 562

[b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 21421 2,740

enterprises and small enterprises
Binorivy Interest o [+]
Debt securities 12 .
Borrowings (Other than debt securities) 13 20,558,620 199,733
Other financial abiities 14 1,34,849 152,156
Man-financial liakilitics
Provisions 15 11,115 2,539
Other non-financial labilities 17 65,659 30,494
Equity
Equity share capital 1a 23,804 43,804
Other equity 139 37.94,032 38,123,517
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQLUITY 61,24,780 43,44,547

The accompanying notes from 1 to 90 are an integral part of thesa consolid
This is the Consolidated Balance sheet referred to in our report of even date

For 5 M M P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo, 120438W

W

Mudit Lakhotia v Radha Kapoor Khanna
Partner e Director

Membership Np. 417827 | DIN: DD683334

Place : Muribal . Place : Mumbai

Diate : . ) 0 Date :

L [l )

Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Yos Capital (India) Private Limited

\

Reshini
Director
DiN: 05167806




Yes Capital (India) Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of profit and boss for the year ended 31st March 2024
{All ameunts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Maotes Year ended Year ended
st March 2024 31st March 2023

Nevenus from operations 4,125,730
Interest income 26 5,49,510 4,632,166
Aent -
Cividend income 2
et gain on Tah value changes e = 83,483 2BB7A
Total revenue from oper Uans 055,572 4,982,041
Other income &, 239,318 74,502
Total income 1258340 5,66,943
Expentes
Cost of food and beverages consumed 50,453 -
Fimance cost 24 58 858 18,145
|mpairment on financial instruments 23 6,165 13,053
Employee benefit expense 26 350,286 205,127
Depreciation and amortization expense 10 8,749 26,331
Uther expemnses ;o 2,84,072 1,61.318
Total expens.s /,86,388 4,44,029
Profit before tax G 5,11,052 1,22,914
Tax expense

Current tax G4, B0 62,801

Deferred tax 24,128 14,203

Short provision of earlier years - 1,636
Profit after tax (a) 3,92,930 44,275
Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent pariod.

Changes in fair values of equity instruments through OCH 7 2

Loss on sale of aguity instrument measured at FYTOU - -

Re-measurement gain/(loss) on defined employae baneit plans 11,318 [1,044]

Less - Income tax effect on above (314) 300
Total other comgrekensive income L (1.624) {742)
TOTAL COMPHEHEMSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR {at + {b; ;:;‘ 3,91,30¢ 43,533
Earnings per share ]

Basic & diluted 0.7 0.0z

The accompanying notes from 1 to 9C are an incegral par' of these comelisated financial statements
This is the: Consolidated Staterment of profit sna loss referren (o in our eport of even date
For 5 1A M P & Company

Chartered Accountans
Firm Registration No. 120438W

oy

vs ' dapaor Khanna

Paulit Lakhotia L

Paitra ielar
Membership No, 417827 [roe: CuE32334
UDIN Mo,

Place : Mumbai e | e bl

Date

Do

Fer =4 on bahalf of the Board of Direct: s o
Yo Capita (India) Private Limited

Rozhini Kapdr
Directar
[IN- 05 1ETROG
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¥es Capital [India) Private Limited

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Al amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
Pare— 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A Cash flow from operating sctivities
Prafit/|Loss) before ta 5,11,952 1,12,914
Adjustments for:
Degreclation and amortisation expense 26,749 6,381
Loss on desposal of property, plant and eguigment 119y L]
Interest incofme [5.49.510) 14,63, 166]
Paet gain o Tair valee changes {B3.ETI) -
Gain an disposal of lang-terem nvestmants - [439]
Aeversal of Impairment on financis instnements 111.014] =
Riversal of Contingency provaion on standard an assets 1434}
Impairment on finandal instruments. 6,165
Frivisian far Diminution af Investment 17,516
Shart arovigian of earlier years 467
Leahilimies no longer required written off ica
Balance Wiritten off 1,640
Unrealised Gain on Assigned Laans (35.838) ;
Liability o barger required, weetten back [1.55,511) 161}
Fimance cosls 57,831 17,433
Changes in fair vabaes of aquity instruments through OCI - 2
share based payments e {5,667}
Cash generated from operations before working capital change [1,90,733) | 3,03, 6%E)
Adjustments for working capital changes
[increase) / decraate in leans {2.65,651} 171.504)
{increase) f decreasi in ether financlal assets (67,338} 18,872
(Increase) f decrease in Urade rceivables |5 a08) E
{increase) f decrease in other non-Financial assets {18 4486} |28,163]
{Increase] f decrease n lnvemanies |S,9089)
increase [ (decrease) .n minority inlerest : el
Increase | (decrease] in provisions [9,893) [194]
Increase / {decrease)] in irade and other payatles 157,743) ~ 13,925
Cash generated from operation (B6,21,622] 13,68,762)
Income-tanes paid (1, 25,066 |55, 680}
et cash llow generaied from cperating activities [A) {746,587} [4,25,342)
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {19.205) (5,579)
Procesds from sabe of property, plant and equipment 145 [
Purchase of bang-term investments 113,82,944) -
Procesdi fram sale of Investments 10310 5.95 685
Tax paid on buyback of shares . (11113}
Inferest recerved 549,510 463,166
Wit cash flow generated fromyused in) Imvesting sctivities (B) R, 42,183) 10,42, 086
€. Cash flow from finandng activities
Feeparyment of bormowingsdhet) 12,58 687 (7,17,431)
Interest pasd (57.831) (17,433
et cash flaw (used in]/ganarated from financing sctivities (C) 18,0056 {7.34,864)
Net Increase/|decresse] in cash and cash aquivalents (A+B+C) 112,185 {1,18,221)
Cash and cash equiviients at the beginning of the year 3,66,577 4,085,158
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 579,162 66,977
Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks
i curreng atcourts 5.76.550 365,365
Cash on hand 2612 1,712
5,79,162 366,977

The accompanying rotes from 1 to 90 are an integral part of these consolidated financlal statements

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement referred fo in our repart of even date.

ForS M B P & Company
Chartered Accountants
Eirm Begistration Na, 12043

Mudt lakhotia &
Parirar P
Mhembership Mo, 417832
Place : Mumbal | | ['.!,1,-,
Db :

W

Radha Kapoor Khasna
Director

DM 0GR

Place : Mumbal

Far and on behall of the Board of Directars of
Yes Capital [India) Private Limited

Roshini
Cerecion
Dim: O516TROG
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Yes Capital [India) Private Limited
Notes farming part of the consolidated financial statements far the year ended 315t March 2024
(Al amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Company overview

Yes Capital (India) Private Limeted was incorporated an 8th May 2003 as Private Limited Company under the provisions of Companies
Act, 1956 The Company Is Non-depasit taking systemically impartance core Investment Compary ["CHC-ND-5I") registersd with the RE|
vide certificate No. N-13.02253 dated 05th June 2018 The Company aleng-with its subsidiaries {referred to s “the Group”) is engaged
in varied business activities comprising of making investrnents, Providing long-tenm finance to individuals, companies, corparations,
socities or association of persons for purchasafconstruction/repair and renawstion of niayfexisiting flats/houses for residential
purpases and provide property related services.,

fol I5 | its subsi H
Particulars % Hodding
Ambience Hospitality Management Private Larted 100.00%
Ambience Hospitality Private Limited 100.00%
ART ARC (India) Private Limsted 100.00%
ART Business & Consumer Finance [India) Private Limited 10K 0%,
ART Capital {India) Private Limited 100, O
ART Capitai Advisory (India) Private Limated 10000
ART Climate Finance [Intia) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Corporate Finance (India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Fin Combinatos Advisors LLP 95.01%
ART Finance {India) Private Limited 100,00
ART Financial Services (India) Private Limited 100,00
ART Fintech (India) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Howsmg Finance [indis} Lemited 100, 005
ART FCombinater Advizors LLP 95.00%
ART India Faundation 100.00%
ART Insurance Ventures (Indsa) Private Limited 100.00%
ART Real Assets Fanance (India) Private Limited 10 (00,
ART Special Situations Finance (India) Limited 100.00%
ART Venture Finance |India) Prvate Limited 100.00%
ART Wealth Managament [India) Private Limited 10000
Himalaya Finlease Private Limited 100.00%
Ind Glgbal Securities Limited 100.00%

Basis of preparation of consalidated financial statements

Thee Cnmpany has prepared it lidated financial st 5 Lo comply In all material respects with the provisions of Companies
ACt, 2013 ("the Act”) and rules framed thereunder. in accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the
Company hai adopted Indian Accounting Mandarsds {ind A%) notified under the Comaanies (Indian Accounting Standards) Hules, 2015
under Section 133 of the Act, with effect from 15t Apnl 2018, Till 215t March 2019, the Company used to prepare its consolidated
financial statements as per Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2014 (Preveaus GAAP) read with rule 7 and ather refevant
provisions of the Act,

The wonsolidated financial statermants have been prepared on a histonical cost convention and acerual basis, except for the financial
assets and liabilitios that are measured st fair value

Principle of Consolidation

The Group consclidates all entities which are controlled by it. The Group established comtrol when it hag power over the entity, is
eaposed, or has rights, ta vanables, returns from its invalvernents, with the entity and has the ability to affect the BNTTY's Feturn by
using power over the entity

The Consolidated Financial Statements hawe been prepared on the following basis:

Entities contrabled by the company are consplidated from the date the contral commiences unitil the date the cantrol ceases,

The financial statements of the subsidiary comganees used in the consolidation are drawn up tn the same reporting date as of the
Holding Company i.e. year ended 315t March, 2071

The financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies have been combined on a lire-by-line basis by sdding
together like items of assets, liabalities, incame and expenses. The intra- group balances, intra groun transactions and unrealsed
prcits have been Tully eliminated

The excess of cost to the Company of its investments i the subsidiary companies over its share of equity of the subsidiary companies,
a1 the dates on which the mvestments in the subsidiary are made, is recognised as “Goodwill® being an asset in the consalidated
financial statements. Goaduall arising out of consolidation 15 ot amortised, However, the same is tested for impairment at sach
Balance Sheet date. Alternatively, where the share of Equity in the subsidiary companies as an the date of the Intestment 15 in excess
of cost of investrmant of the Campany. it is recogrized as “Capital Reserse an conzolidation” and shown under the head "Other Equity”,
In the conzofidated financial staterments

Non-controlling intarests in the net assets of subsidiaries comssts of;

11} The amount of equity attributabile to the mEnorities at the date an which investrment in subsidiary is made and;

8] The manasities share of maowements m equity since the dats the parent-subsidiary relationship came into exiElEnce,

The Group's interests in Uity accounted investees comprise intorests in assorates and jgint ventures

AN &330C1aLE |5 a0 entily in which the Group has significant inflissnce, but ot controd of paint control, over Lhe financial and operatng
polecies. & joint venture is an arrangernent, rather than right of its assets and chigation for its liabilities. Interests in asseciates and
FHIL Ventures are acounted for using the equity method They are initially recognised at cost which includes transaction cost,
Subsequent 1o initial recognition, the consolidated financial staternents include the Group's share of profit or koss and other
remprehensive income of equity accounted investeas until the date on which significant influsnce of aint controd ceases

Changes an the Company interest in subisidiaries that do nat resull in a loss of contral are accownted for as @dquity transactisns, The
carrying amount of the Company's interest and the non-cantralling intergst are adjustad to reflect the changes in their relatives in the
subsidiaries, Any difference between the amaunt by which the non-controlling interest are adjusted & the faw walue of the
consideration paid of received i recognised directhy in equity and sttributed to cwnier of the Company.
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¥es Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statemants for the year ended 3151 March 2024
(Al amaunts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Significant accounting policies

Shgnificant accounting judgements, estimates and asgumptions

The preparation of consolidated financial statemants in conformity with Ind AS which fequires management to make estimates,
assumptions and exercise judgement in applying the accounting policies that affect the reported amount of assets, labilities and
disclosure of contingent liakifities at the date of consolidated financial staternents and the reported amounts of income and ERfERALAS
during the year. The Management belioves that these estimates are prudent and reasanable and are based ugan the Management's
best knowledge of current avents and actions. Actual reslts could differ from these estimates and differences betwesn actual results
and estamates are recognised i the periods - which the results are known or materialised.

Fodlowing are the areas that invohed a higher degree of judgemant ar comalexity, and of itams which are mare likcely to be materiably
adgusted dus to astimates and assumations turning out to bie different than thase origmally asseased,

i) Property, plant and equipmant and Intangible Assots: Management revews the estimated useful Bives and residual valuas of the
assets annually in order to detormine the amount of degreciation to be recorded during any reporting period. The wseful lves and
ressduad values as per schedule 1 of the Companies Act, 2013 or are based on the Group's historical experience with similar asists and
taking into sccount anticipated Lechnological changes, whichaver i more apprapriate.

i) income Tax: The Group reviews at eacheonsalidated balance shest date the carrying amount of deferred G liabilitie: The factors
used in estimates may differ fram actual sutcame which could lead 1o an adjustment to the ameounts reported in the conzolidated
financial statements.

i) Comtingencies: Group has estimated the possible outflow of resources at the and of each annual reporting financial year, if any, in
respect of contingencies/claims/Tntigations against the Group a8 it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with
Bccuracy,

iv) Impairment of financal assets: The impairment provisions for financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and
eapected cash loss. The Group uses judgement i raking these adsumptions and selecting the inputs 1o the Impairment calculation,
based on Company's past history, existing market conditions as well a5 forward looking estimates at the snd of each reparting parad,

v] Impairment af nan-financial agsets: The Group assesses at sach reporting date whether there is an indicatisn that an ssset may be
impaired. if any indication exists, of when annual impairment testing for an asset iz required, the Group estimates the asset's
recoverable amaunt, An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's or Cash Generating Units 1CGU) fair vadie bess costs of
dispasal and its value in use. It i determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent to those from ather assets ar groups of assets. Where the carrving smount of an asset or CEL sxcasde ite racouseahle
ameunt, the aszet o consadered pnpaired and s written down to it recoverable amount

In assessing value in use, the estimated Futire cash flows are discounted to their present valis using & pre-tax discount rate that
Teflects current market assessments of the Hme value of monay and the risks specific te the asset. In deter mining fair value |ais cost of
disposal, recent market tramssctions are taken into account. If po such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model iz
used. Thase caleulations are carraborated by valuatson multiples or othar svailable fas value Indicators

vi) Defined benefit obligation: The cost of post-emplayment benefits is determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuation
involves making assumptions abaut duscount rates, future salary increases and mastality rates. Due to the long term natura of these
Plans such estimates are subgect to significant uncertainty.

Rewenue recognition

Revenue is rocagnised te the extent that it is proBialde that the economic benefits will flaw 1o the Group and the revenue can be
redlably measured, regardiess of when the payment is besng made. Aevenue is measured ot the fais vatlue of the consideration recaived
o receivabile, taking inte account contractually defined terms of payment and excliding taxes or duties colleeted on bebalf of the
Evernrment.

Other icome

Interest inceme from financial instrument (s recognised Lsing the effective interest rate method. The effective intareat rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipls through the expacted fife of the financial asset ho the gross canrying amount of a
firancial asset. When calculating the effective mteres rate, the Group estimates the expected cash flows by eenaidering all the
seniractual terms of the linancial instrument {for example, prepayment, extension, call and similas aptions) but does not condider the
expected credil losses.
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Yes Capltal (India) Private Lirnited
Notes farming part of the congolidates financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
{all a 5 bn INA th d%, unless otherwise stated)

Fraperty, plant il equipment
Property, plant and Equipment is stated at cost, net af accumulated depreciation and Sccurnulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
directly attrioutable to drgusition are capialised until the Praperty, plant andg quipment's are ready to use, a2 intended by the

Subsequent expenditires relating to property. plant and equipment arg capstalized only when It 5 probable that future ecanomic
benufits associated with these will flow ta the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, Repairs and maintenance eosts
are recognized in net profit in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss when incurred. The cost and related sccumulated
depreciation are elimmated from the consalidated financial staterments Upon sdle or retirement of the ssset and the resultant gaing or
losses are recognired in the consalidated Statemant af Profit and Lass Assets 1o be disposed of are reported at the lower of the
“arrying value of the fair value bess cost to el

Financial instruments

Initial recognition

Financial assets and financeal labilities are fecognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
Instruments, Financial assets and financial labalities are Initially measured at fair valug Transaction costs that are directly attributable
te the acquisition o issue of financial asaets and financial liabalities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the Fair value of the financial sssets ar financial labilites, as appropriate, an
Initial recagnition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financizl assets or financaal liabdlities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediatedy in profit or boss.

Gk

€ f tment

Non-desdvative financial Instruments

{1 Financial assets carried at amortized cost :
Assets that are hald for collection of contractual cash flowes whare thase cash fiows Tepresent soiely pavments of principal and fnterese
are measured at amaortised cost

exchange gais and osses which are recognised in profit and boss, When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative Ealn or loss
previously recognised in OC) i reclassified from equity ta prafit or loss and recognised in otler Bamns/ (losses). interest Income from
these fingncial assets s inclydeg In other income using the sffective interest rate method,

{ifi) Financial assets at fair value thraugh profit or boss (FYTPL)

As5ets that do nat mest the criteria far amartised cost or FVTOC! ate measured at Fair value through prafit or lass. A gamn or loss an a
debt investment that s subsequently measured at fair value through profit or doss and is not Par of & hedging redationship s
recognised in profit or loss and presented net in the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss within ather gains,/[losses) in the period
in wehich it arses. Interest income fram these financial assets is included in other income,

{iv] Equity instruments

Where the Graup's Mmanagement has elected to present fair value Bains and losses on equity Investments in ather Comprehensive
inceme, there is no subsequent reclassification of far value gains and losses to profit o ks, Dividends fram such imvestmants are
recognised in profit or loss when thir Group's right to recelve payrments is establithed.

(¥} Financial liabilitiss

Dot and equity Instruments Hsved by the Group are classified a5 either financial liabifties o as Bquity i accardance with the
substance af the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial lizbility and an equrty instrument,

Financial fabilities that are not held-for-trading and are not designated as at FYTPL are meazured at amertised cost at the end of

subsequent accounting periods. The rarnying amoants of financlal liabilities that are Hubsequently measured at amariised cost are
determined based on the sffective interest method,

Bovrowings are classified as current liabifities unless the Growp has an unconditional TN 1 defer settlement of the labiility for at leasy
1} months after the reparting period.
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Yes Capital (India) Private Limited
Motes farming part of the consalidaied financial statemants for the year ended 31st March 2024
1Al amounts i INR theusands, unless otherwise Stated)

Derecognition of financlal instruments

i} Finandial assets

A financial asset is derecognazed cnly when

althe rights to receive cash Tlewws froen the financial asset i transferred o

b retains the contractual Tights 1o receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumes & contractual chligation to pay the cash
flows to ane or mare Tecipients.

Where the financial asset is transfersed then in that case financial asset is derecognized ondy o substantially all risks and rewards of
wwnerihip of the financial asset 15 transferred Whare the wntity has not transfesreg substantially all risks and rawards of swnership of
the financial asset, the financial assat " not derecognized.

i} Financial liabilities

A financial liahality is derecognized when the ofligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled ar sapires. When an existing
financial lisbality is replaced by anather from the same lendar on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liabality are
substantialty modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the ariginal liabidity and the recognition af a
new liabilty. The difference in the respective carrying amaounts i fecognized in the consolidated Statement of Proft and Loss as
finance casts,

Ottsetting financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilitios are offset and the net amount is feporied in the consolidated balance sheot where there is a legally
enforceabile right to offaet the recognized amounts andg there is an intention o settle on a net basis or realize the asset and seftie the
liahidity smultanaousty. The legally enforceabdn raght mast nat be contingent on future events and must be enforceabds in the sarmal
caurse of business and in the event of defaubt, insalvency or bankruptey of the Growp or the countergaty,

Impairment of Assets

a. Financial assets

The Group recognizes [oss allowances using the expected credie loss [ECL} model Tar the fimancial assets which are ot fair valued
through profit or oas, Fos all acther financial assets, ECLy are meatured alan amaunt Equal to the 12-maonth ECL, imlesy thera has bean
8 Sgnificant increase in eredet sk fram initial secognition in which case those arn measured at lifetime ECL The amount of ECLs [o
reversal) that is required 1o adjust the |oss aliowance at the reporting date to the amount that 5 required to be recognized is
recognized as an imgairmant gain ar lass in cosolidated profit or loss,

b. Mon-financial assets

The Graup assesses at each consalidated balance sheet date whather theve is any idication that an asset may be impaired. For the
purposas of assessing impairment, the smallest Identifiable group of assets that Eenerates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash infiows from ather aseels or growp of acets, is conssdered as a Cash generating undt. i any ssch
ndication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount af the asset. The recoverabile amount is the higher of an asset's fair
vilue less costs of disposal and valise in use. I such recoverahle amaiint of the assel o the recoverabde amount of the cach generating
unit o which the asset belangs is less than its ERITYINE amawnt, the carrying amaunt is reduced to its recoverable amount The

recoverable amount is reassesved and the ssset s reflected st the recoverabie amount.
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Yes L‘aplur[hd.lajﬁwmi.imm
Motes farming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year snded H1st March 2024
1Al amounts in INR thausands, unbess otherwise stated)

Frovisions and contingent liabifities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present alligation {hegal of ronstructivel as a result of a Past event, it is probable that
N Sutflow of resaurees embadying econarmae benefits will be required to settle the abligation and s relisbie extimate can b made of

the amownt of the ohligation. IF the offect of the time value of money iz material, provisions are discounted UINE egquivalent period

Bovernment securitias Interest rate, Unwinding of the discount i recognised in the Consofidated Matement of Prafic and Logs a5 a

finance cost. Brovisions are reviewed at each consolidated balance sheet date ang are adjusted to reflact the Clerrent Best estimate,

Provisions are recognised when the Groap has a present obligation (legal ar constructive) as @ result of 3 D3t event, it is probable that
an outfiow of resources tmbodying scancmic benefits vall he required to settle the obligation and a Tefiable estimate can be miade of
the amaunt of the obligation. If the eflect of the time valup of money is matevial, provisions are discounted using equivalent periad
BOvermment secirities interest rate, Unwinding of the discaunt is Tecogrised in the Consalidated Statement of Profit and Loss as a
firance cost. Pravisians arerevewnd 81 each consolidated balance sheet date and are adjusted 10 reflect the current bett estimate

Earnings par Bquity share

Deferred tax is ecognised an temporary differences betwesn the carrying amounts of assets ang liabilties in the coparate

The earrying amownt of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it s na
longer probable that sufficient tasable profits will be available ta allow all or part of the asset to be recoversd. Deferrad tax linbiities
and assets are meagured at the tax rates that ars enpected to apply in the Periad in which the lability iz satttad or the asset reslised,
based on tay rates {and tas laws) that have bean enacted g substantivedy enacted by the end of the reparling period,
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Yas Capital {India) Private Limited
Kotes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024
(Al armounts kn INE thousands, sndess otharwise stated)

Employes Henefits

Shaort-term obligations

Lizbalities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settied wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employess’ services up o the end of
the reparting period and are meaturad at the amaunts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The labilitios ane presented
a4 current employes banefit abligations in the consolidated balance sheet,

Post-employment abligations

Diefined Benefit Plan

The liability in the consolidated balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is the present value of the sefined benefit
obligation at the end of the reparting periad. The defined benefit chiigation is calculated annually by actisaries using the projected unit
credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation denominated in INR i5 determined by discownting the estimated future cash
outflows by reference 1o market yeelds at the end of the reporting periad on government bonds that have terms approsimating to the
terms of the related obligation. The nat interest cost m caleulated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined
benefit obligation. Thas cost is ancluded in employee benefit exp it ledated Statement of Profit and Loss,

Remeasurernent gains and losses anising from expenence adjustrments, changes in actuarial assumptons and return on plan asets
lexcluding interest income| are recognised in the period in which they oceisr, directly in other comprehensive income. They are
included in retained earnings in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and i thaconsolidated balance sheet. Changes in the
present value of the defined benefit abligation rasulting from plan amendments ar curtailments are recognised immediately in grofit
o loss as past servics cosk.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

In the consalidated cash flaw statement, cash and cavh equivalents includes cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, ather short-
term highly liquid ivestments with coginal matunties of three months or less that are readily convertinhe to known amounts of cash
and which are guhiect to an insignificant risk af changes in value, and bank awerdrafts, Bank sverdrafts ae shoam within beorrowings in
current liabilitios in the comnalidated balance cheet.



4.1

Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
Notes farming part of the ¢ edated financial stat 15 for the year ended 3150 March 2024
1Al @mawnts in INR thousands, undess otherwise stated)

Az at As-at
__ BstMarchi024  3istMarch 2023

Cash and cash eguivalents

Cath on hand TE1Z 1712
Deposits withr engnal marwsay of lais than 3 reanths [Refer Note 4.1 " 12915 10,088

Batarics=s with banks
I CUrrent acoawnt E5,591 44 §al
1,001,118 67491

Fost the Balince Sheet date, a sum of Bs 38,362 thousands has been pravsinaly attached by Enforcement Directorate on May 5. B30 & cannection wah the
argoing htigatan in the matter of promater group. The Campany has filed an applcation with the Adjudicating Authority of Enforcement Directorate | New Delhi,

As al An at
3150 March 2024 Flsr March 2023
Trads recaivables
Cansidersd goad - wnsetured® ;
Fora pesad Less thoo sin Mol 508
S :

* The creédt pasnad genarally ranges from 1510 30 days.

hg wrade or ather recevables are due fram mirectors o other offcers of the Company ether sewerdly of ety with @y athar gersan, Trade receivables o on 310
March 20245308 thegandin due from firma or grivete companies respectively it which any direcion is @ parner of @ directar of & mernber,

Al at As ot
3lst March 3034 F1st March 2023

Livans
(&) At amortised cost
Lovans ta individuals 34,710,683 35,63.875
Loan to-athers 51.31) 165
Security depasit 665 18
Total (A] - Gross a0 63, BH0 35,64,058
Less : Abowance far Impairment fosg 432 537} 1,58 586)
Tortal (A} - Net 36,31,153 3!_,5&&
[BY [i} Secured by tangible astets 33, 70683 35,632,875

(6] Secured by intargile assets - -

() Covened by bank/gowernmant guarantss -

{hel] Unspcured 03,997 LE®
Total (8] - Gross 40,63, 680 35,64,058
Less : Addwance far impairment loss (4,323,527} {1.58.556|
Total [8) - Met 31,152 w
€1 1] Lans in Indss

Public sector - -
Otners 40,63 .680 35,664,058

Total [C) - Gross 40,63, BaD 35,564,058
Less: Allowance [ar impairment Ioss 14,32 527 (1.53_.555|
Totad [C)[1] - Nex 36.31,152 13 65,502
AC} 48] Loans outside ndia
Less - Allowance Tar Impairment foss # >
Total [C)(4) - Net
Tatad [CHI] and [CI(1) 3631152 33.65,502
Inventories
[t lower of cost and net realisable value]
Food and beverages (excluding liguor and winm) 5231 -
Ligquar and wine 2,605 =
Stares, cuthery, crockery, bnen. grovsions and athers LABS -
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Yes Capital {India) Private Limited
Notes farming part of the consalidated financial statements Tar the year ended 3151 March 2004
[All amounts in MR thausands, unless atherwise atated)

Other financisl assets

Interest aicried on loans to related partiss
Lexs ; Allowance for Fnpairment loss
Securty Deposits

IMerest accrued on ioans to mharg
Recowerable to refared partios

Advance recoverabie from BFOUp com@panies
Balanme wilh governimant guthoeniay
Frepayments

Interest accrued on fived depass

Uthier Recenvabie

Uniutilised Sarace Taw! VAT G5T Craci
Contractars & suppliers

Pravisional Inceme

Ef Recermbile

A a1 Ay ot
315y March 2024 315t March 2023
500 o
.:j_.j}.lj -4
& a4 5,592
. 48
o 58
] [218)
113 3,038
5314 81
20801 11508
EL | -
(355 :
4,323
538
55,338 14,361
100880 iS5t
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Yes Capital {indval Privane Lirnited
Notes forming part of the consalidated financial statements far the year anded 315t March 2024
[AY amounts in iR thausands, unlesy atherwse stated)

Az 3t AL gt
315t March 2024 315t March 2023

Other non-financial assets

Other Advanpes 14.735 11,055
Avance to Suppliers 141 B
Acquired properties theid for salg) 63453 48,509
Balanta with gavernment autharitiey 18006 15 560
Staff advarces 435

Frepaymerits B3R G478
vzt Frowsan for enpecred crpdit logs o [15.855) [16,3 746}

g!ﬂ B4, 703




121

Y3 Capital {india) Private Linitegd
Netes forming part of the consalidated financial statements far the year ended 31st March 2024

(A4 amoumts in MR thausands, unless otherwise stated)

A5 at Ag at
315t March 2024 21st Mareh 2023

Barrowings (Other than dekrt securives) TR T e
At Amartised Cast
Secured
Term Loans

Fram Mational Housing Bank [WHE) b, 200

Froum Banks 198,645 199, 713
Unsecured - at amortises st
Inter-corporate deposis L15.000 =
Loan from bagy carparate 198,77 %
Loan from director 14,50,000 -

YT 13873

Borrawings in india 20.58,620 195733

Barrowings outside India e T
20500 199,733

Motes:
i3 and carmy rate ol interest of B 353 Pa The lzan is having tenyre af 7 \vears from the data of

Secured term loars from Banks @ bawards oan from State Bank of i
disbarsement and are rheaakle in 20 quarterly instaiments after & moratoeur af 24 manihs, the repayment commences from Decernber 31,2079 Thete loany are

seClned by hypathecaton {esclusive charge} of the loans given by the Camaany.

The inferest rate for the aforementionad tarm 0ans are linkeo 1o the Maginal Cost of Fund Based Lending Rate (MELR) of tha Fesnactive fendars,
Cihier borrowings are tawards the shart Lerm Inter-corporaty deposis and are repavable as dullet payment and end of teerm of imter-conporste depass, Thess Inter.

CFpLraTe deposts are unserurad.
Particulars Terms of repayment Effective Principal Principal
ingerest rate Dutstanding as ar Outstanding as ar
308 March 2004 15t March 2023
Ursecured knan From relsted Paties Fopayable on B0 month .10 1% 058 &0 1,959,733

Fram date ot
disburgsmen
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¥e5 Capital {ingia) Private Limited

Hﬂh'rfﬂﬂnlnl Part of the consalidates financial statements far the year ended 315t March 2074

[All amounts in INR thaussnds, unlexs atherwise atated)

Other financial hatifitigy
Interest accrusd bt no duean borrowings
Security Depasity
Temporary bao evevelrafe
Leae Dbligation (Liatuiity|
Other Liabilitgs

Fayabies 1o relaten partps
Statutory dues

Creditar far capiral deme
Amgunt parable 1a members
Deferred membership fpes
Afvance rent

Advance fram members
Expenies payabie

Emplovee refated laniines

Provisions
For Emplover benpfirg:
-Gratuly
“Lompenzated absanses
-Banys
ECL o initsbursed AN oML Mt

Dederred tax labittias
Deferred tax refated to dems fecognised in OC1:

Deferred tay labilities |Eross)
nireallsed gain on equiry mstruments recogrised at AVTo0

n«mmm:mmmmwh statement of prafit and lyas
Deferred tax Labdtier (grass)

‘Gehel temporary differanpag
\nrealised gain on ity of mutual fusg TeEOgnIsed at FVTR

(@

Difference in writter dewn vilue of srogerty, plant ang FAuipmENt a5 per books of account and tas laws

Deferred tax assets {(grogs)
Other ternparary differances
bmpmienient ow Fangecial Ingerimens (B

L]

Diftevence in written down vBlue of Propesty, pant & Fqwpment as per backs af asroune ang tak faws

Losses avatable for offeatting againat furure targbie eame

D\‘.'ﬁ:freﬂmmrnﬂ]

Other non-financial habilities
Advarios from customers
SLMUNOFY gusy

Gratuity

Comwensated abtengiay
Deferred memberchip faas

Advance rent

el

{dh = fel-(k)

As at Az
315t March 234 3iat March 2073

Sara L&, 100
1,000 .
G065
1312 2,650
AaR0 42 30¢
. 1B
8305 3
5016 -
1553
9,899
174
10,585 .
934 5%
J0.584 14,215
== 1,34,849 152,515
As 3t As at
31t March 2074 315t March 2023
— RN 028 81t March 2t
35662 28
1,525
2002 -
2,505 1M1
s 2539
As at As at

3151 March 2024 3181 Mareh 2033

38,163
556
18, 565)
- 30,194

50713
75,534

= B4,135

- 53,941

—— : -3

As gt As ot
315t March 2024 313t March 3073
Al March 2033

13,867 14247

18041 42247
12 05
117
5830
a5

65,652 35,254



Yes Capital (India) Private Limited

Notes forming part of the consalidated financial statements for the year endad 31st March 2024

(Al amounts in 1R thousands, unless otherwise stated)

18 Equity share capital

184 Authorised share capital

Equity shares of Ing 10 each
At 1st April 2022

Increase during the year

At 31st March 2023

Increase during the year

At 315t March 2024

188 Equity shares of INg 10 each issued, subscribed and fully paid up

At 1st April 2022
Increase during the year
At 315t March 2023
increase during the year
At 315t March 2024

18C Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has anly one class of shares referred to as equity sharag having a par value pf INK 10

The Company declares and pays diy
remaining asset of the Company, af

Number of Shares Amount :
25,00,000 25,000
200,000 25,000
25,00,000 zs@_

Number of Shares Amount
23,80,381 23,804
2380381 73,808
25.80,381 23,804

each. every holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.
idends in Indian rupees, |n the event of liquidatian of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of tha
ter distribution of all prefarential amounts, The distributi

on will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the

sharehalders,
180 Details of sharehoiders holding more than 5% shares in the company
Mame of Shareholder As at 31st March 2024 As at 31st April 2023
No. of Shares held % of Holding Mo, of Shares hald % of Holding
Mrs. Raakhe Kapoor Tandon 793,461 33 34% 7,93 461 33.34%
Mrs. Radha Kapoar Khanna 7.93,460 33.33% 7,983,460 33.33%
Ms. Rashini Kapoor 7,893,460 33.33% 7.93,460 33.33%

As per records of the company, including its register af shareholders/mambers the above shareholding

18E Aggregate number of shares issued for cansideration other than cash and bonus shares during the perj

rapresents both legal and benaficial ownerships of shares.

od of five years immediately preceding the balace sheat data.

Financial year No of shares

Equity shares allotted g3 fully paid-ug share of As, 10 at premium of Rs. 266

subsidiary which wers haid by minarity share holders,

Pursuant to acquisiiton of equity shares of

2017-18 12,75,381

17F  The details of Sharehoiding of Prometers are as under ;-

[?hure: held by promarars at the end of the year Mo. of Shares % of total Shares | 5% Change during the | % Change during
Fromoter Name current year Previous year
Mrs. Raakhe Eapoar Tandon 793,461 33.34%

Mrs. Radha Kapoor Khanna 7.93 460 33.33%
Ms. Roshini Kapnor 7.93 460 33.33% :
Total I~ 23,680,381 100.00% - -1
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Yes Capital (India) Private Limited

Motes forming part of the consolidated financial statements far the year ended 31st March 2024

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Other equity

FVTOCI - Equity instruments

At 31t March 2003

Changes in fair value of FYTOC! equity instruments (net of tax)
Lass on sale of equity instrument measured at FVTOCE (net of tax}
Transfer ta retained earning on sake of equity Inslruments

At 31st March 2023

Changes in fair valug of FYTOC! equity instruments inet of tax)
Laes an sale of equity instrument measured at FVTOC (net ol tax)
Transfer to retained earming on sale of equity instruments

At 31st March 2024

Statutory reserve ufs 29C of The NHB Act, 1987
At 315t March 2022

Transfer from current year profit

At 31st March 2023

Transfer from current year profit

At 315t March 2024

Special Reserve ufs 36(iHvill) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
At 31st March 2022

Transfer from current year profit

At 31st March 2023

Transfer from current year profit

At 31st March 2024

Statutory Reserve Fund
At 315t March 2022
Transfer during the year
At 31st March 2023
Transfer during the year
At 31st March 2004

Capital Reserve

At 31st March 2022
Transfar during the year
At Tist March 2023
Iranafer during the year
At 31st March 2024

Share Based payment reseni

At 315t March 2022

Pramium on ssue of equity shares during the year
At 31st March 2023

Premium on idsue of equity shares during the year
AL 315t March 2024

Securities premium
At 31st March 2022
Premiurm on ssue of equity shares during the year
At 315t March 2023
Pramium on issue of equity shares during the year
At 31zt March 2024

Retained earnings

At 31st March 2022

profitfLoss for the year

Transfer to special reserve ufs 36(1))(viil) of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Change in accounting policy/prior period adjustments

Less: Transfer to statutory fund

Buyback of shares/ transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve

Balance written off on account of strike off

At 31st March 2023

profit/Loss for the year

Transter to special resense ufs 3611 Hviii} of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Goodwill on account of Purchase during the year

Re-measurement gain{ioss) an defined employes benefit plans {net of tax)
Less: Transfer to statutory fund

At 31st March 2024

Total other equity

AL 31st March 2022
At 3st March 2023
& 31st March 2024

Amount

——e

(7.805)
¥

(7,803

L

25,128
17,936
43,124
24,185
57,300

1,16,836
24,199
1,41,035
20,861

10,254
(&, GET)
4,586
2,978
7,514

:

5,39,251

3.38.251
3,38,251

32,092,006

43,531

{24,199}

{3

[34,391)

{11,112}

N G
32,65,884

352,930

[20,B61}

(423,719

(1,632}

(1,14,159]
—rRA

37.96,714
3823517

37.94,032
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¥es Capital {Indsa) Private Uemited

Fotes forming part of the conealidated financial statements far the year ended 315t March 2024

{All amounts in INR thousands, uniess ptherwiue stated]

interest Ingome
O financial assets measured at amortised cosls
Interest an Loans
O lgan o related parties
Interast on cEposits with banks
Other fee income and charges
tembership fees snd suhscription
Rooen revenue
Erael snod hoverage revenue
Othes aparatng revenyd

et gaing{loss) on fair vabue changes

Net Gainf (Loss] on financial instruments 1 fair valuee through profit or ks

&n wading partfala
wesiments in Mutaal fands

ther income
Interest Imcame on incarme by refund
Interest wicome on feed depasa with banks
O Finant il instrement caenied at amartsed oot
Frofit on sabe of imestments
Provision for @rmunitan in assel
Aeuersal of mparment on finanoal insLfuments
migcallansous Income
Unrealived Galn on Assigned Laars
IFterest Incaime Gr secunty deaesin
Heeresl af Contngency pravision an standard loan assets
Liabiities ne longer requered written back

ot of food and Deverages consumed

Food and beverages conswmed {eaciucing bauar and wine}
Cpgnang stock

Add: Purchases guring the year

Lss: Dlosing stack

Foed and beverages cansumed [eeCiining lguar and winej &1

Liguor and wing consumed
Opening stack

fuddh- Purchases dunng the year
Less: Clasng stock

Lquar and wine consurmed (B

Food and beverages consumed [A+B]

Finaroe ookt

O financial labilities measured at amortised cost
mterest on borrowings
tntarest an Lease Liabdity
Inferest pepiran o others

Bank Charges

inlErEst edpense an statutney dues

Impairment an finarcal instruments

On fmancial instraments measured at Amortised cost
On Gther Recewables - Frpected Crems Los

Lians, advances and other receivables wotten off

For the year ended

Far the year ended

31st Mareh 7024 31st March 2023
508482 443050
o a
17,384 10,795
BB 13
1,06, 406 ]
BE627
2,00, 846
10,861 :
9,15240 Agaase,

For the year ended

For the yest ended

315t March 2024 3151 March 2023
53,183 2880
83288 s

For the year enoed

For the year ended

3151 March 2024 31at March 2023

4 E87

12016 2452

29 -

433

- 5000

15,014 a3 (HE

24,105 17835
354838
3l

434 z

135511 1E1

2,39, 280 14902

Far the year ended
315t March 2024

For the year ended
315t Manch 2023

186D
438,858
L3l

ARI0
LEYE]
LA

10,561

55,458

45616

17433
619

a4

18,145

For the year ended
31st March 2024

For the year ended
15t March 2023

n
5842

82:7
4831

5,185

13,058
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Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
Motes farming part of the consolidated financial statemenis e the year anded 31t March 3034
4l @maants in INR thowsands, unless atherwise stated)

Emplayen berefit pepense
Lalaries, wages & bonus
Camtriution Lo provident fund
Gratulty

Share baned payments to employees
Cther wedare expenies

Other expanses

Renit, taecs and energy covls
Memberben B Subscripbon Chasges
ROC Fiing Fees

fiepaits and mamtenance

Froperty Tas

Cammaunaation oots

Printing and stanonery

Bucior'y fees and expenses

Legal #no Professions Feet

General Office Erpenzes

thectricity & Water Charges
[Directar's fees, Slowances and ddpenaey
'Lags on dispesal of property, plant and equpment
(085 on sabe of shares

Epourily expEnbes

\Wimshing and laundry aspensied
Crockery, cutiery, glassware and lingn zansumen
Function and festeal mipenses
Carparate Social Hazpanubilsy axpanies
Fine & Panalty

insurance

Prowissan for Deminutian af nuestment
Credit card commasicn

Commmission to travel agents

Eguipment Hire Charges

Changs m [ walue of investment

Loss 1 impairiment of investrent share of loss fram LLF
Travedling Fapenses

G5T Reversal Expenses

Riscellaneaut Bxpianses

Balance Weaten off

Becoenodation g

Business promoton

Uihilities no longer recuirad wrtten aff
Shoel prowivion of earlier years

Crher expenditure

Earnings per share (EFS]

For the year ended Eor the year ended
3151 March 2024 315t March 2023
;17568 151,774
45,843 9,158
2,112 Lo
138 &
L 11835 3,096
3,50,286 305137
For the year ended Fof the yeas anded
218t March 2074 315t March 2023
AE 126 LLVE]
1313 1,584
a5 za
T a2 Lrar
312 =
4339 1,951
L 1%
2454 1024
52641 45,393
16,707 15,726
32,167 a020
1420 191
(13} H
A5120
BIE ”
3,258 .
8,936
G43 .
5305 4318
3 -
4,641 2841
L1516 -
1.556 -
4,758 *
1958 4
. LYY
. 184
11,260 10,165
1728 27
9,034 5,218
LE1D 21431
198
1561 6,858
18 E
AGY
1,128 1,657
3E48TE IIEEII

Thie greunt comsigarad in ascartaining the GrOUR'S SArnAgs per share constitutes the net (sas)fprofit sfter tax. The number of shares used in compuing bauc
cernings per share o the weighted swrage numbar of thares outstaAGnR during the year. The number of snares used in computing diluted sarnings per share
Camprises The weighted sverage rumber of shares contidenad for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weignted verage rurnbser of shares which could

hawe been ised on conuersion of all dilutive patertial thares

Particulars

Basic & diluted earnings par shars [IKR)

Year enged Yiear ended
315t March 2024 3181 March 2025
Net profitdlioss) for calcutation of basic & dilyted EF% %83930 44275
Weignted average number of equity shares for ceculating basic & diluted EFS 13,80,381 23180381
o1 Qg2
10 10

Heminal valie per equity shars [R)




Vet Capital (Irdia] Frivate Limited
Mistes Farening part of tha ransoidated financial stabements for the year pridesd 315t March 2024
(Al amounts in INE Phousands, anless atherwise stated)

Ernployer beneliis

Detired Contributicn pens
T Garpup’s defined contribation plans (s prosident furd Jin case of certan emakiyoes), The sontributans ta the provident fund sre charged to the consalidated statemsnt
af v and hss Tt the year when the congributions ane due. The Gloup s s iligatiars, oibvar than he comtributicn payaole i 1w pravidet fund

Gratuity - Post-emaloyrment benedit plans

The Growup has 3 defined banefit grafsty plan. Gratuity i corguted as 15 dlays salary, far esry completed yiar of servite 08 part thirreod in extes of § months and i
pavabile on FElFEITRNL eIt esgnation. That bepnela vests nn the amoloyees after complatan of 5 waars ol serdce, The Geatuity fabioy fas it beert extemalty
furided, Group makes prowisien of such grataiy ety i the backs i accouts on thebassof actuarial valuation 3 por hee projected unit credi kol

Charge to thi consolsdated staterment o prafit and kiss basod an detined contribatimn phans 3is1 Margh 2024 A1st March 3033
Ernploves's canribution i regional pravident fund pffice 15,43 4158

Dischasures Tor definad benefit plans based on acluarial valiatie (epsrts:
The Enllowing Fables cammarize the components of nes benefit expensp recograred in the coraslidatod sraement l peodit and kiss and the wnfunded stana and amounts
recogniied o thi Dalance shest e b gatuity,

Eapensies secognised in consolidated satemant of profit and lss 3181 Maren 2024 3ist March Hi23

Cument seric cost 34598 1,391
Prast service DOst :
Irterest cost 1147 2ED
Jeeturn on plan awety _taBi) |475]
Total exprrees [nrame] recognised in the consolidated statement of profit and loss. A214 1'%{_
Fapenses recognizad in the athir ramprehensve snepene Q0T fog current year JME&.
Gperng amoant ecogrised in cthes comarehensive ircome (3,293 11,115
Actuanial (gaira]flosses an ohligation for thie pesioe - Dt io changes in demaigraphic assurmptions :
Atuarial (gains)isns oo obligation Tor the perod - Due 1o charges o financlal assurmpsios 1378 13
Actuarial {gainsyiosses on cbigatin far the period - Due ta g noe adjusdment (61 BB
Artud returm on plan gsaels [Ess inferest o plan assens - + 37 T
Net ircaimselfaxpense 1or the perad recognieed in GG [FRER| Rl
Armiunt recognised w Che Bstance Sheet 315t March 2074 315t March 2073
Prasent valun af wiunied obigaton 21,50 GBS
Faér vakae of plan assts (o] [
Paet Hiabily recognived in the Ralance Sheet 14,881 ErE
Recognived under
Man curfent proviski 2,738 34
Cusren] prendsion 12,6005 £]
Changes in the present vales @ e difineed benofit abligatean 151 March 2024 313t March M3
Ipening defined beneli chigation 5179 4457
Opening addtien dug to Acauisitien 11,683
Current service ol 3490 1,241
WnbeEnest cus Ly ]
Past serace (oSt
Bl paid |3, 7= [1,586)
Actuarial (gains |/ faces o obligation L T
Closing defined bonef oblgatan H SH) 179
Changes in fair value o plan asset: kst March 2024 A1st March 225
Eair value af plar awets as ot the Begrming of 1he oar 1,520 BT
Actual reten an plam assets &13 151
Lontrbutns
Feenefits pad (700 161
Fair valus af plan assets as at the and of the year 5639 E520

Sirew the enbire amaunt of plar obligation is unfunded therelare changes in i walue of plan assuts, cabegarios of plan asssts a5 a parcent
asiets ard Graup’s sepestnd candribution fn thi gian assets o the ret

age of this [air value of (ot plan

The prnCipal assumplions used in determning gratuity absgaton Fist March 2024 315t March F03
Uiscouwnt Fate pal™ 1.2% G25%
Salary escalatian rae®® 7,508 E1LE ]
Retirgment age

Awisrage past weriie (yeats) 14 Yeary 1.9 ¥aaen
AVETaRE AR (YDA 33.BYears 34,1 Years
Ayrage remaring woeking Ives of employess fpears) G Years #1 Yoars
AALARion rate O o
g - Withdrawal 1ales I

Poetality 1 2013-74 IALME 20132-14

* T discaunt Fatg is genesally baced upon Phe market wekds aunilanle on Gosernmant beids 3t the acoourding rate relmvant Tocurency of berwmfit payrments for a term

thay matches the liabilities

o® Salry giowth rale b Groug's lang term. best cstimate.as b salary mdredses & Lakes altount al indlation, sersonty,
Tebevant Tagoes on Kong borm Lass 25 provided in reltvant acoourling srandard

The estimates of future salary increases canslered i doibatial vaualon Lhe account al

Factird, such as supply and damant in the employment markel

Thie Greup regulary assesses thess AssUMpLans witn ik prajested kng-term pl
significant actuariad assumntiins oo the defined benefit phigatiing is given in the Laoke below

promation, busmess plan, HR ipodicy and oiber

{idlaticn, Total amourt of edlation, seceomty, pramatian and oither releant

it and prevalant mdistry standards. The empact of sensitivity du 1o charges o b




Yeu Cagital [India) Private Liritod
Pt forming part af theconsalidated financial statements fne the yeas ended A1st March 2029
(Al ameuns in INK thausands, unloas piherwise stated)

Thi sersilvily dnatyses sbone hasd been deaperninpd hised ar a meband that extragalabes the impacl an delined benett obligation as a result of roassralile changss in

Ky ALSLETIRAICNS s urting at She ond o thee reporting perind

Expected contrution fo lund in th maeel year

31%&'!\ i

315t Bdanch J023

Eagrictied contribution to furd in the nest ear

Gratuity smnounls far cusrent year and previous years

13t March HI4

1.2 218

314 Mbarch 2003

Eredined bensdit obligaticn
sarplugfi Deficit)

Prajected ptan cash fow;

Thie table Bolow thiws the sepected cash iow aitifile of the benefits to b paid o the parrent membership of the pl

valuation date:

Projected benefits payalds in future years 12om thedate ol reporing

an based on past servce of the empiowens as 31 the

2151 March 2024 315t March 2023

Expocted banatits Tneyear 1
Enpred berfits for year 2
Expeecbid beenefis for yeas 3
Eapreschied benedits far yoar 4
Expected ponedits tof year b
Exprcted bonefits lor yoar 5 abowe
Tats

Sonsitivity Anabyss

Samficant achianial axsupeptions for she desemmanon of the defines henett oblganion ure Bscount e il expeeie
ngliggiok, Flease niote thar the sensienaty nalyms presenied bekra may not be mphocntanve o i il change o 1

5670

2947

2,673

JAZH

1.5
10,00 5
23,587 ]

wowl W

ke

| pobary litsrims eane. Eifect oF chinge m mraling mte
b defirsed benefis pldiganon as = % unlikehy that the

chiangy i asRamption wisdd oocur m mcksivo ul i micher s seoms of the sesmprtiins iy b cornelabed. The neslns of sendenaly anlysas ane given hkow

Farticu st Bharch 2024 15t Manth 2074
Froperred Benchit ULEgirsi on Camrent Asssmprens 2151087 1m0
) Lffect b ' dange o Asanprrn glEooam ran

%0 e resis 1.5 LA
1% e 1,50 A
(it Effect of $¥e vhage massumed pabary escalimor raic

E%e mairise 1507 ERLISY
170 decrasss 1. 50%% AN
Risk arialysis

The Groug is exposed 1o a ramber of risks o iha Astinod heoelit plans Mest significant sisks peataining o delinpd benefits plans and management esimanon of the

impact of these inka are a5 Forlicrmys:

\nllation risk: Currandly the Graugs has not funded the defined beneft plans. Therefare, the Groca adll have o Hiear the antire increass in liability n acoourttof inflatian

Loty riskflile expectancy ; The present wiikue o the etined perelit plan labilivg i cafculatod by refe

vt b i bt estirnata of the mortaity of plan partitipals

et during and at 1ha and af this mpinyment. An aoresse o the lifip expectaroy of the plan panicipants will edcease the plan sty

Sty rowdh risk: The present vl al the defeed benetit plan ialsitny s cakulaied by reference ta the future saliries of plan partscipants. An incroaze in the salary ol

e plan participaats will mcrease that plan laniky.

Crmaersated abaenoes
i} Amounits Tecogrised in the balance sheat:

Farticutars A4 41 31 March Fi24 An at 31 March 2003

Current kabity 1,535 1485
Pian-current hablitg 5117 4005
Nea obligation recognised in balance shest 1047 5,490

it Faperses recognised in statement of profit and

lons

Particulars As o 318t March 2024 As on 3181 March 2023
Current sarsden Lo 9 a15
Irleses] oast 525 e
Artuarial Lgain) ks HIE 113
Lot recognised during the year LiM 138
) Mavement in the lisbiliy recognisad i the balancs thost is 25 under:

Particulsni A at 11 bMarch 2034 Aa b 31 March 2023
Fresent valug of delined bonefd obligatan at the 5,490 £330
beganing of the yed

Cury Bt SETViCE LY v 915
IntErest cent 335 199
actuarial fgamlons dain 113
Eenefits pard |STE] (58)
anﬂMﬂwnammuhg 1043 4,490
1 ) For determisation of the liability of the Comgary th fllowing sctuarial assumptions were usec: =—==x
Particulars 31 March 2004 31 March 2023
Demctunt rate T.15% B.A5%
Salary escalation rete 10.,00% 10,00%
Retirement age |years| &0.00 50.00
Withdrawal rate % 20%
1) [b) Maturiy prafie of defined benefit abligation

Particulars 31 March X124 31 March 23
@ ta 1 yhar 1,928 1488
1 te 2 year 1,533 1474
2to Iyear 1,214 237
e 4 year 940 18
A ko 5 yaar 753 573
% year orwards FE N 1,518



Yis Capital [India) Private Limited
Mot forming part of the consolidated finaniial siatenvents fes the year anded 3351 Warch 0
|4l amounts in INE thousands, unless pilherwise stated)

382 Corporate Sexial Responsinility expenses
Fartculars

Far the yoar ended

March 31, 3024

For the year ehdud
March 31, 2023

Gross amount tequired be be spent dusing the ypar
Amaunt incurred as inclaed o Other expenses
- shartfal at thie end ol the year, shall b incured pl Sep, 2003

5,302
5305

£

8,308
4,328

Amisni spent during Shri: year endind March 11, 7034
Pilic s

In cash

Tl 1y b paid

Total

a) Canstructicndacaquisitam uf gy aset

h‘!‘:""E'-'rH* oEhes than ;u abenan

5,305

5,405 |

Takal
L —

5,905

Amuunt spont during the year endod March a1, 20¥

Particulats

2] Canstructonfacauisiton of any sset

I cnhi Wi o b pad

L]

Total

& 328

b G“E“’EE"‘ pEher than ;a above

Tatal

4,318

A AR

Relaten party tTansctons dursg the year in ralation ta TER cxpenditure s He Rl [Predos Year R NIl

263 Eapenditure in Foreign Curipney

Particidars

|

Tor the year ended

March 31, 7029

Feir the yiar ended
March 31, X123

| Gt Eepainigs
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Yes Capital (India) Private Limited

Notes farming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024

{All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)
leasing arrangements

Operating lease commitrmeants

The Group has aperating leases for the office premises. These lease arrangement has a period of 5 year
of 3 years for lessees and 5 years for lessors], The lease is renewable for further period

escalation clauses. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as "Rent’ in the statement of Profit and Loss.

Future minimurm rentals payables under non- rancellable operating lease |excluding lease egual

< (which has non cancellable period
on mutually agresable terms anc aiso include

isation reserve] are as follows:

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Within cne year
After one year but not more than five years * a
Disclosures as required by Ind A5 116 - Leases in one of the subsidiary are stated below:
Lease liability movement
Particulars As at As at
mMarch 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Balance ason 1 April 2023 2,650 12,442
Addition during the year 2,114 1,545
Interest on Lease Liability 256 619
Creletion during the year 1701
Lease rental payment {1,709} [12,283)
Balance ason 31 March 2024 3,312 2,650
Amounts recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
asser wise depreciation charge of right-of-use assets 1,384 10,288
Interest expense [included in finance cost) 256 619
Expense relating to short-term leases {included in rent expenses| 22,575 a.614
Total 24,215 20,521
Future Lease Cash Outflow for all leased assets:
Particulars As at As at
march 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Mot later than one year 2101 1,564
Later than one year but not later than five years 1,678 1,438
Later than five years -
Impact of discounting and other adjustments (467 66) (332.51)
Total 3,312 2,650
‘Maturity Analysis of Lease Liability as at 31 March 2023:
Particulars As at Asg at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Within 1 Year 1,798 1,305
Within 2 Years 1,514 1345
Within 3 Years
After 3 Years i
Total 3,312 2,650
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Yes Capital (India) Private Limited
Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

32 Related party disclosures

A As required under Ind AS 24 - List of related parties and relationships with whom transaction have taken place and
relationships of control identified by management and relied by auditor

Nature of relationship Name of related parties _I

KMP and their relatives of the Holding Company Radha Kapoor Khanna - Director
Raakhe Kapoor Tandon - Director
Roshini Kapoor - Director

Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel and their DolT Creations (India) Private Limited

relatives exercise significant influence Morgan Credit Private Limited

DolT Urban Ventures (India) Private Limitad

DICE Districts (India) Private Limited

DolT Smart Hospitality (Inida) Private Limited

DolT Smart Infrastructure (India) Private Limited

DolT Urban Ventures (India) Private Limited

DolT Creative Consumer Ventures {India) Private Limited

DolT Eco-Tourism India Private Limited

DolT Real Assets (India) Private Limited

DolT Retail Brands (India) Private Limited

DalT Urban Infranetwork Services (India) Private Limited

NCUBE Planning and Design Private Limited
Bliss Apartment (Mumbai) Private Limited

Indian School of Management and Entrepreneurship
Private Limited

RAAS Investments India Private Limited

Bliss Habitat Private Limited

Imagine Reality Private Limited

Rab Enterprises (India) Private Limited

RAVI Renewable Energy & Lighting India Private Limited

Rurban Agri Ventures India Private Limited

RAVI Integrated Logistics (India) Private Limited

RAVI Horticulture (India) Pyt Ltd

Dice Accelearation & Educate Services (India) Private
Limited

Azure Entertainment Private Limited




_Transactions with related parties

Nature of transaction

Year ended

Year ended —|

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Unsecured loan taken

DolT Creations (India) Private Limited

Dice Accelearation & Educate services (India) Private Limited

Indian School of Management and Entrepreneurship Private Limited
Morgan Credit Private Limited

Roshini Kapoor

Azure Entertainment Private Limited

DolT Smart Infrastructure {India) Private Limited

Unsecured loan repaid

Dice Accelearation & Educate Services (India) Private Limited

Indian School of Management and Entrepreneurship Private Limited
Morgan Credit Private Limited

Azure Entertainment Private Limited

DolT Smart Infrastructure {India) Private Limited

Payment made on their behalf

Roshini Kapoor

Director Remuneration
Roshini Kapoor

Liabilities Written off
DolT Creations (India) Private Limited

Interest Income
Ravi Integrated Logistics India Brivate Limited

14,50,000
28,500
12,500

28,500
12,500

188
3,600

1,03,449

1,04,000

2,94,999
1,27,512
3,98,950

a8

3,600

942

** Remuneration includes bonus

Balances with related parties

Nature of transaction

As at

As at

Unsecured loan taken
Roshini Kapoor

Interest receivable on ICD

Ravi Integrated Logistics India Private Limited

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings

DolT Creations {India} Private Limited

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

14,50,000

648

1,03,449




Yes Capital (India)] Brivate Limitad
Motes farming part of the eansolidated finangial statements for the veas endad 31st March 2034
(A amaunts in NG theusands, uness otherwise Stated)

33 Segment Reporting
In Bcoordance with Arcounting Standasg Ind 4% 108 ‘Dparatng segrment’, the Greup's operations fall within 2 Eéngle ogerating and gecgraphical, and theredore, no separate
sclasure on segment information 15 provdad in these consolidated financal saternents

32 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Entarpeises a3 defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
Based an the intimation recamed by the group, some of the supphers have condirmed to be regitered under “The Micra, Smatl aad Mediem Enterprises Development ['MEMELY]
ACE, 20067, Aecordingly, the disdiosures relating to amadints unpaid as at the year snded together wih interest paid fpaysble arg furfished befow

Particulars As at Az an

315t March 2024 31st March 2023
I
The princpsl amaunt ang the interest due theraon |16 ha shamn separately] remaming unpad to any supplier &s at the end of sach| 9,281 o)
Socounting year/pering

The amaunt of interest paid By the bisyer in tarms of - saction 16, of the Micra Serall and Medium Enterprise Devefopmant Act, 2006 il Ail
along with the smounts of the payment Made 1o the supplier bevond the apponted i3y dunng dsch accounting yea period

The amaunt of interest dus ang payable for the period of delay in making paymant {which have been paid but bevona the appointed il Hil
day during the vear/panod) but withaut asding the interest speched under Micra Sl and Medium Enterprisa Development fct,

O,

The amownt of interest aecruad and TEFFININg urpaid ar :heunrwh.-a:hacmnt-ngwur.-'pqnnd; ard Mil il
Tha amiaunt of further interest remaining due and payable even in the ucceeding years, untd such date when the interest duss as il Rl

above dra actually paid to the small enterprse for the purpene of daafiowance a5 a deductibie axpendituee under section 23 af the
Micra Smalland Medism Enterprise Development Act, 2006

35 Commitments Kabilites ang cantingencies

Particulars A at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Conuingent liabifsties
(a] Claires agairat the Lormpany nat acknowledged as dehis® 3,155 -
(] Dusputed InFome Tax Mermands mot prowvded far in subsidiary company 21,259 14,085
Commitments
151 Estimated armaunt of contracs FEMAnINg ta be executed an cagital account and net orovded for in subrdisry compary -
gl Loan Cwnml:mntsmrdspﬂltlr disbursed Ipans in subisidiary company 315 646 2,61,810

*The Corraany has not provided for fis, 1741 theusands towards adiitional hanys far the friancial year 2014-15. ansing dus 10 retrospectve smendment in Payment of Bonus
[Amerdment) &ct, 2005, against which certain Hon'ble High Courts, have stayed the amendmment to the eutent of rotrospactive elfect for the financial yeer ended 31 March 2015
The sarme will Bie prowidad for, if Faquored, wheen the final order of the respactre High Courts which will have its eMect thraughout the cerritary of india are received.

B Mot of amount pasd under Brotest moneyv.amaunting Rs 1,434 thausands.

36 The Hor'ble Suprerma Soure [5C] s, in & recent decsion (50 decision’), ruled that varsus allowances like canyeyance allowance, ecal allowance, educatian allewance, medical
dllowance etc., pad umifarmily and universally by an employer to its smplayees would farm part of basic wages far samputing the pravident fund ['FF or ‘the furd’} contnibutian and
thereny, has laid down principles to exchude (or indude] a particular allowance or payments from “basic wage' for the purpose of computing FF contributon The Compary pays

ipecial allowance, convevance allowancs and athers allowances ta it emploveis 8z a parl af its e compensation structure, which sre not included in the basic wages for the
purpose of computing the PF

s the sbove said ruling has not prescribed any darificstion with respec 18 s Application [whether prosgectve o retrospectve). the Company 5 0 the process of ealyating the
impact an the prowdent fund contrabutiang. Pending clarification and evaluation af impact af above said, the Company has recognised the impact of the aformantisned 5C decision
Rrasgectivedy fram the month of March 3079 the financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2019

37 Fair values
La] Financial instruments by category
Particulars 315t March 2024
Amortsed cost At Fair value through  Ac fair value through  Total carmying value
prafit or koss (o]
Financial assets
Investments 241,295 21 241315
Cash and cash aguvalents 101,118 - - 1,61.118
Bank Balance othar than shove 4,758,004 - 4, TE O
Security depasd 5784 = 4,784
Trade receivables 5,508 - 5908
Loary 36,311,152 . = 3631152
Oither finarisal assets 54,096 - 940654
43,15,103 241,295 21 45 60418
Financial labilities == e
Barrowangs (Uther than dabt facuntios) 199,713 1,99,733
Frade pavables e - 3303
Crher financial liabulities 252 156 - 3,32 156

4,55 197 = 5 4,55,192




Partreulars 315t March 2023
Amortised cost AL fair walue through AL fair value through  Toradl carrving value
profit or loss OCi
Financial assets
Irvpstments £, 30.B09 14 230823
Cash-and cash equivalents 67061 - - EF 061
Bank Balance other than aboye LEFE16 - 2.59,916
Security deposy 5692 - - 5692
Trade receivabies - = = .
Lsans 3385507 < ¥ 3365507
Other financial assees 28BS0 - - 29,850
37 68,030 2,30 809 14 39,98 843
Financial liabiftias
Borrawings (Csher than debt SECLTILIRS) 1,593,733 - 19497133
Trade pavables 3,303 - . A0
Other financial liabdes 1.51,156 [ = 252156
4,55 193 = = 455,197

The management of the Group assetsed that Cash
Apprommation of fair vakue largely due ta the sht]
of fa valueiargaly dus to the lomg-term maturitie

k) Fair valse hiwrarchy and methad of waluation:

and cash equivalants, other financial assets, trade Payables and ather fimancial labilities FAITYINg SMOunt 5 a reasnnable
tlerm maturities of thess instriments and borrowing (other than dens SECUFILtes) cArrying amount 153 reasanatle Apprommation
= af these instruments

The: Group Categanizns Bstets and liabidties measured at fair value inta che of thres |ty depending on the ability 16 observe INPUTS-Bmpiaved in theie maasirernent which gre

described a follgws.:

il Lewved 1 - Inpists are quoted prices [unadjusted)

‘nactive markets for identical assets ar lizbifitas

Bl Level 2 - inguts are inguts that are observable, either diractly o indiractly, otper tnan quated prices includad within beved 1 for tha ssset or liakaility,

i} Level 3 - |nputs are unobservabile inputs for the asser o

market participants

listhity reflecting sgnificans modifications 1o shservable related market data or Group's FBumprions about rcng by

The fodlowng table provades the fair value measurernent higrarchy of the assess and liabilities of tha Group -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hanrarchy for assatslabilities as at year ond-

Particulars 31st March 2074
Vo Carrying value Leved § Leyed 7 Lovel 3 Total
Financial assets moasured at fair valipe
Investmenss in units of mutual fund 241,395 241,295 - 241, M5
Inwestments i ooty shares IR0 23079 - 250
Investmants in COPS [25.058) - [25,058) (25,058
Laang 36,31 157 35,31 152 35,31.152
Financial assets measured gt amortised cost
Security degosit 85.784 = 2784 - 8,75
28,81, 252 - 2,50,094 36,131,153 SBEL,252
Particulars 31st March 2023
Carrying value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tatal
Financial assets maasurod st far valug
fnwestments in units of mutusl fand 2,13,293 1,13,293 213,293
Investments in aquity iFares 25072 25072 - 25072
inattments in CCPS 17,542} - [7.542) (7.542)
Loans 3% 65,502 . 33.65.502 33.65,502
Financial sasets measured at amartised cost
Secunity depon 56932 - 5,693 = 5,697
02,016 - 236,514 3_555 502 36,02 016
Particulars Fair value hisrarchy  Valuagicn technique Inputs usad S
Financisl assers maasured a1 Fair value
Investments in mutual furd it Lews! 2 Net assets value Met assets value (NAV) in an active rmarked
Financial assets measyrad #t amaortised cost Lmuel 1 Cusbed prices Uasing price from recogrised stock exchange |NSE)
Seeurity ceposi Leswal 3 Discounted cash fiow Prevailing interest zates in the markes Future tazh flows
Financiad liabibities at amortised cost
Debt sacueitiee Lewn 2 Duseounted cash flow Prevaifing interest rates in the markat, Future cash flows




¥es Capital (Indin) Private Limited
Metes forming muﬂnmmm“&ummmhmmrmmmm
(Al amounts i INK thousands, unless othensise stated)

Fimancial risk management objectives and policies
The Company's present Dusiness sctivities are sxposed I a variety af financal riska, namely market risk, cragit risk and Fquidity risk, Tha RTOUE'S seniar managesment
owersees tha management of these risks.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financisl nstrument will Huctiyate bacause of changes in market grices. Groug's financial instramant is
Exposed to interest rate risk and price risk,

Interest rate sensitiviey
The follcwing tabée demonstrates the sensitivity of the Group's profitloss badare tan for the year ang sensitrity of the Group's total equity foa redsonably possible change in
Interast rates, with all other variabies held carstant. The senstivity of the prefitfioss befare tax for the 'redr and sensitivity of total equity st the and of separting peried, is the
effiect of the assumed changes in intaract ratae an

Sensitivity of interest oxponan Sensitivity of changes in fair  Sensitivity of changes in total aguity

{nerease | docrease value of imvestments Intreasa|decrease)
st March 2024
YR of investment in mutual fung (1947} 2319 26,276 29,551 {1,947) 2314
315t March 2023
Y& of investment in mutual fund [3.833) 1,511 {3,524 100 [3.813) 1,811
Orther price rishs .

Fyuity price sunsitivigy
The Tollawing table demonstrates tha sensitivity of the group’s cther comprehansive Incame (excluding Impact of tay expensa) far the vear and sensitivity of tha Aroup'’s tatal
Equity b a reasonabiy possible change in market price, with all sther wirinhies beld comsrant

Change in percentage Sensitivity of OC1 Sensitivity of changes In total squity
Imcreasn ) (decrease) Increase/|decreass)
Fist March 2024
Market price of squity investmant 5.00%, 5, 00% 1 (1) 1 13
F1ak March 2023
Market price of aquity | 5005, 00% 1 e] 1 L2F

Credin figk

Credit sisk i3 the risk 1hat 5 fountarpacty will not mase it ablgations under & finencal Instrument leading to b financial fass. Credit risk arises prneigally fram the Groun's
Trecenables fram cash heid with banks and finBncial metititions and athee Fnancial sset. The AKATILIT €XpOLIE 50 Eredit risk is egual to the carrying valus of the fenancial
asseLs. Credd risk on cash and cash equivalents and ether financial assets are limited as SIoup ensure to engage with fauntérparties that have s good credit fating. The Group
HORS MOE epect any kasses from ran-perfarmance by thess counterparties. and does rat have any significant concentration cf BEPOSITES [0 specific industry sectess,

caniractual maturity is based on the saskest date an which the Groun may be required to pay.

Faar ended 315t March 2024 Ondomand | Loss than 3 months | 5 1o 132 i | LtoSyears | a5ypears | Tatal
Tracss payadiles 50 0 18579 1.054 ‘ 585,702

Barrawings [Other than debt securities] - - 142,740 15,15, 880 - H0,58,620
Other cisrane finarcial kabilities 1,0 pltrg 1,200,883 | 7,340 | - 1,298,375
Year gnded 3151 March 2023 _On demand 2 tw 12 mumths ars =5 yoars Total

Trades paysbies 2,267 oo E 1,301
Bafromungs (Other than dent SeCLftes) s 1,060,000 99,748 - 1,949,723
Dther surrent fingncial lisbilitias __1Bzany 61,372 7,054 = 254,340

Capital managemen

The primary chjsctivn of thae Group's management is 18 macmise the sharehokder walus, For the purpede of the capital management, capatal includes Bquity and combinstian
of various debt instrument. The Greup manage their cagital structios and makes adiustmants in bght of changes In economic canditions and the requirements of the financial
CoYErants

- 30t March 2004 31at Macch 2023
Todal equity 3807875 ELERE
Dbt s ariies 3

Hrpingsgﬂﬂur:_rm debt secirities) 20,58, 620 1,99 733
Total Debt 20,58.620 1,99,733
Cash & Cash squivalenes x 1,000,118 67,061
et Debr 21,59, 738 2,665,794

_Debt [Equity Ratio : ) . 057 0,67
Yez Cagital (Inclin) Private Limited [standalons) i subject to the capital adBnuUBCY raguirements of the Reserve Bank of Irdia IRBE). The Core Inestmant Companies (Resene
Bank] Directians, 2016, stiputate that the Adjusted Met Wenh of 5 CIC-ND-5 shall 8t na point in time b less thar 3000 ing sk waighted aisets on balance shest ant risk
adjusted valus of off-balance sheet ibem as on date af the last audited balance 3s at the end of the financial year. The Core invastment Comparies (Resarve Bank) Nirectians,
2016, further stipalate shat the autside liatilities of # C1C-ND-1 shall at no paint af time Eneeed 2.5 tmes 115 Adjusted Net Worth a5 on dvte of the lct sudited badance an st

The Compary an standalens barsis bas comphed with ai ragulateey raguirsenents refated capital gnd <apital sdequacy reguirement az presotibied by R
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Yes Capital {India) Private Limited

Motes forming part af the consalidated financial statements far the

1Al amaounts in IR theusands, unless otherwise stated)

A1 Trade Payahles Ageing Scheduls
As a1 315t March 2024

year ended 31st March 2024

Particudars.

Dutstanding for 3
Less than 1 year

following periods frem due date of paymuent

1-2 yoars 2-3 ywars

Mare than 3 years

TOTAL

[i] hAEsaE

9,144

5 i9

103

9.581

i} Cthers

20,607

fi

(i} Disputes dues - MSME

AT A1

- 5739

[i) Disoted gues - Others

As at 3151 March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding for fedlewing periods from dup gate

of payment

Legs tham 1 year

1-2 years 2-1 years

Mo than 3 years

TaTaL

{11 MSME

b2

(i} Dthers

1,731

562

05 1

1) Disputed diges - MSIE

2,740

Livh Disputed dues - Others

42 Trade Recoivalie Agsing Scheduic:
A at 315t March 2024

Farticulars

Dutstanding for fallowing periods from due date af paymesnt

less than 6

& months to 1 yr

1-2 years

23 years

Urdisputed Trade resvabies - Lonsidered Goed

i4 2B

|“nduputed Trade reivablas - Considered Digmibafis

Disputed Trade reivables - Considared Good

Disputed Trade reivablis - Cansidered Dewibtiug

As at 3151 March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding far bollowing poricds from due date of payment

G manths to 1 yr

1-2 years

23 years [

Marg than 1 years

Total

Mrdisputed Trade reivables - Consigared Gogd

Unidaputed Trade reivabies - Cordidered Doubstis

Disputed Trade remvables - Considered Goed

[Csputed Trade reivabies - Cargigered Doubsiul

1

43 Disclosure as per ind A5 40 on “Inwestment Propery’

B Amownt recagnised in Matement of profit smd loss for investment properies

Particulars

Ra i Thounamds

For the year emided 3

LALS, 21Z 4

For ihe year saded 31.03,2003

Revanue fiom operabaons
=~ Rental moame

Profit lrum investiment Properiies befare depreciaiion
Depeeviation

Dhrect aperanng expenies of propeny that gengraied rental IRt

A4,811
14,522
HLZH

GEH7

Prafit from investoeng

a4

i) Contractual Oblizations

There are no conrachal sbligations with respect ra parchise, consirue o develop myvestment propery or fr s repasrs. maintenanco or enkancements

I} Leasing Arrnmgesenis
[mvestment propertics af the Com
el

Py e beaned 0 1enants under long-term operating leises with rentals payable monthly. Fubare misimum lese pavments urder nos-cancellable aperating leases are as

R, in Thansunds

(Fartkwlars

A m
K HIC ] ]

As
J1,05,2423

Inmrhmunom

44,801

Detween one and five vears

50748

More than five years

104,559

R

iv} Fair Valae

Hs, in Thowsands

rminhm

| A w1

Az pi

Investment properties

2082 100

Estimation of fair vabue
The Farr value of the

tnvesmenl properies have been determaned by the mnanugement based on the valation done by Independent Valuser

=



e Capktal (India) Private Limited

Moites fi

ing part of the o atad fis t5 foe thee year ended 31st March 2024

(Al amgunts in INR thousands, wnless otherwise statad)

4 Asset liability management
Maturity pattern of certain items of assets anc kabilities |based on CIC Directicns)

Particulars

Liahifities

Other fimandial | Borrowings from

liahilitios Banks

Barkiet

Other financial assets

For the year 2033-24

1 ta 7 days

15 cays to 3031 deys

Ower § manth to 2 marks
Cer I months to 3 months -
Cwer 3 months to 6 manths -

Ower 1 year ta 3 years
Dwer 3 years bo 5 years b

215 14 days y 5

Crver B months te ] year -

_P@r 4] (LLu -

- 18,442

12315

For the year 02223

1to 7 days '|
B to 14 days |
15 darys 1o 30/ 31 davs

Qver L manth be 2 marths

Crhver 1 maniths to 3 months

Crwer 3 manths to & months

Ovar B manths to 1 year

Chver 1 year 19 3 vears

572

2,000

Cheer 3 years ko & years p
Ohver 5 years - "

38X

12437

3,135

14

Mote :-

1. Market borrowings included mterest payable i b ravirggy

2. Imvastrnents incladed irvestmant in Bxted and uriisted securities,

3. Other finarcial assets included Cash and cash equevabent and inberest accrued on fiked degosits
4. Other financial liabilices incuded employes related diuss

45 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of the Company as reguired by RBI/DNBRIZ0IE-17/39 i Master Direction - Core Investment Companies [Reserve Bank) Dinections, 2016 dated Sth October 2020

11| Liabilities cide :

As at 315t March 3024

Loans and advances availed by the CIC incusive of interest scerued therean but not pasl:
fa] Debantures @ Secured
Ursecuned
feamer than folling within the meaning of pubic e posin)
ib] Ceferrad Cradits
(] Term Loans
[d] Inter-corporate leans and barrowing
[#) Commercial Paper
[f] Crther Loans (Besrewings)

s 3t 315t Maech 2023

A ¥ Al

Amount

A t ewardue

103,445

2} | Assets wide :

A ma“!mmﬂ

Amaunt outstanding as at 315t March 2023 |

13) below]

&) Securad
(B} Ursecured
Total_

Break-up of Luoans and Advances ncleding bills receivables [other than thase included in

activities

(1) Lease assets includirg bease rentals under sundry debtors:
{al Financial laass
(b Dperating lesse

(i} $ock an hire including kire charges under sundiy deatars:
[a} Azgets an hire
(i) Repospessed fssets

|&] Other loans counting lowards AFC actwities
[#] Lowns where aisets have been repassessed
|0} Loars sther than [a) above

31| Break up of Leased Assets and stock om hire and other assets counting towards AFC

{l) Shares - |a) Equity

{b] Fraference
(i) Debertures and bopnds
Ly Urirts of mitual Funds
(v} Gewernment Securities
[v] thers [please specify)

1 Urquoted

(i} Shares ; [a} Equity

(b} Prefererce
(4} Dabentures and bonds
[] inits of mutuad tunds
|iw] Gavernment Securities
|} Cthers {pleass specify]

3,365

| 4] mh—q;: ,,...u_.m= Amount fing as a1 315t March 2024 Amaunt autstanding as ot 3131 March 2023
1. Quated

3,135




s Capital (India) Private Limited

Piotes forming part of the consulidated financial statements fae the year snded 1<k March 30134
[All amourts in (MR thowsands, unless otherwise stated)

Lomg berm Iveastments ¢
1. Quoted
[i) Sharas - |a] Equery

ib} Prederence
(i) Debentures and bands
i} Units of mutual Funds
(v} Gowvernment Securities
(v} Othaers [plesse specify)
Urquoted
[il Shares : {a] Cqurty

|} Preference
{i¥) Debentures ared bonds
A} Lnits of mutual funds
{ivh Government Secunties
v} Qthers [please specity)
fosad

(¥

11

15079
47,535

237,930

5,375
1,549,838

,10,158

3,13,929

338513

51 | Darrowss group-wise classficanon of assets financed

as im | 2) and (3] abowe:

Ampurt net of provision as at 315t March 2024

Amaient aet of provision o at 21et March 2023

Category

Secured

Uinsucisrad

Tatal

Secured

Unseured

Total

1. Related Parties
la) Subsidiaries
(B) Companies in ths sama group
(£ ] Other relatad parties

L Other than related partas

Tatal

3

securities (both guoted and unguoted)

fwester group-wise classification of all investments (current and Iong term| e shares and

As ot 315t March 2024

Market Vakue [ Briak up
or fair valug or MAY

Book Value [Net of

provisiony) |

Cotegory

1, Related Parties
[ah Submsideres
(&) Companies in the same greap
lc ) Cifer refated partios

L Other than selated parties

lotal

21
3.13.508

2
3,13.908

Market Value [ Break up

or falr waluee or NAY

As at 315t March 2023 ]

Book Value |Met of

| aid

14
4,38, 505

2
4,348,505

A.13.504

llihﬂ

AT

4,308,507

Other Information

Farticulars

Arnount as al Fla March 2034

fumaunt a5 at 3150 March 2023

[1} Gross Man- Performing Assets
|a} Belated partias
[} Caber than related parties
(] Met Man- Perfarming Assets
{a) Related Parties
(bl Other than related parties

(111} Assets acquired in satistaction of deks




Yes Capital {Indla) Private Limited
Motes forming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 3151 March 2023
(Al amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

46 Employes Stock Option Schemies [ESOG)

ART Housing Finance (India) Limited had iR the previous years 3

the Campary, Namination and Remuneration Comemitiee constituted by the Board aof Directors administers sach of the plans

461 AHFL ESOS - MAY' 2017

The shareholders of the Company at their meeting dated May 79, 2017 approved the AAHFL
2,500,000 fully paéd up eguity shares of K5 10 &ach of the Company to be issued in one or more tranches to o

nnounced @nd-ascgted E505 schemes for s erglovess whersin sach optian represents ane equity ehana of

ESOIF - MAY'I01T schesre consisting af 2,500,000 stock ogutions nepresenting
ligibte aemployees of the Company. The Nomination and

Remiunsration Commiries constituted by the Board of Directars of the Company has, at its meeting held on dated May 29, 2017, Rovember 3, LT and December 8, 2017,

grarted, follawing the intrinsic methad of accounting as is pres

cribed in the Guidance Note ssued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india on Accounting for
Ernployaes Share Dased Payments [“the Guidelings”). Howmwer, the Company has increased the overall limit of steck sations up to 5,000,000 under the sald

scheme an

recamersrdations of Nomination and Remureration Committas and approval of share holders vide their general meeting held on April 4, 2018, &5 the aptions have been

granted st intrnsic value, thers s no employes stock compersation axpanse on account o

2019, whereby the ontions vest on each vesting date as per the vesting schedubs provided in the Scherme

Particulars AHFL D505 - MAY' 2017

I} [Exercise price The exercise price shall be such pres a1 detarmined by the Board of Deectors from tme be time,
bairg nat lese than tha fare valua of a share af the Company as on date of grant,

[0} [Westing canditions On expiry of one year- 0% of options granted
(O mxpiry of twio year- 30 of sptions granted
‘on eapiry of three year- 20% of options granted
D eapiiry of four year- 30% of oplions granted
On expiry of flve year- 30% of options granted

(] | Masirmrn teem of sptions granted |5 years from the date of vesting

[v} fMeating reguirements Continued empioyrment at the westing date

(v} [Exercise perind The exercise peried shall be determined by the Board of Direclods |n consortivm with the
Ecquiidity munrt.

{wi] |Pricing Farmula Calculation is based on falr value methad

A6.2 AMFL BSOS - MAY HIY

ki saere. Thess cotiars vest with effect from the first vesting date 2. May 29,

Tha sharehaldars of the Compary 1 their meetng dated May 9, 2019 appraved Lhe "AAHFL ESOP - MAY' 2019 scheme consisting af 5,000,000 s1ock options represanting
5,000,000 fully paid 1 eguity shanes of Rs 10 sach of the Company ta be issued in one ar more tranches 1o elgibie emplayess of the Compary & its Subsidiarny/ Holding
Comgany, The Nomination and Rermuneration Cammittes constituted by the Board of Direclors of the Comgany has alse st its mesting held on dated May 6, 2019 granted
th shme, following the intrinsic methad of accounting as i prescribad in the Guidance Note ssued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india on Accounting T
Employees Share Based Payments | the Gudelines™). AL the optans have been granted a1 intrinsic valus, thess is ne amployee stock compensation skpense on aeccunt of
the same, These aptions vest with effect from the first vesting date |.e. May 29, 2020, whereby the Dptaans vest on ach vesting date as par the vesting schedule pravided in

the Scheme.

[Particulars

AHFL ES05 - MAY 201S

Lik rEnm'n price

The sxarcise price shall be such price as detérmined by the Board of Directors from time to time,
heing not s than the face value of a thase of the Company as on date of grant

{ii] |Vesung conditions

Dn wapiry of one year- 1% of sations granted
O &xpiry Al tao pear- 20% of options granted
O sxpiny of thres year- 10% af pptians granted
o expiry of four year- 304 of options granted

[} [Adaximrurn term of nptians granted

& years fram the date of vesting

[l _'ul'q_tlri_flgummqnu Continued employment 81 the weE3Ting date:

() [Exareize pariod The exercise pericd shall be determinad by the Board of CIreciars i CoNscrim with the
liguidity avent,

{wi] [Pricing Fosrraila Caloulntian o based on i value method

46.3 AHFL ESOP - 2022

The shareholders of the Campariy at their maeting dated December 19, 2023 approved Lhe "AAHFL ESOF - 202" scheme consisting of 90,835,500 stock optians representng,
a0,85.500 fully paid up equity shares of Ba 10 aach of the Comaany to be issued in ane or more tranches 10 &ligible emaloyees of the Company B its Subsidiarny’ Holding
Company. The Nomination and Remuneraton Committee tomstitutad by the Board of Directers of the Company has also at its meeting held on dated Nowember 28, 2022
granted the same, followsng the intrinsic method of accounting as & prescnbed in the Guidarce Note ssued by the institute of Charened Accountants of India on Accounting
foir Emplaysat Shass Based Paymants {“the Guidelines"] As the options have besn granted at intrinsic wabue, there is no #rmployes stock comMpansation expense 01 account
of the came. These opticns vest with effect from the first vesting date e, Novemoer 30, 2022, whereby the options vest on each vesting date as per the vesting schaduie

provided in the Scheme.

[Pamiculars

AHFL E505 - 2022

Exercise price

The-axercise price shall ke such price as determined by the Board of Directors from time 10 Lime,

bwing et hess than the fage walua of o shars of rhe Campany ae o data it grant

Weslmg conditions

Oin expiry ot ame year 6% of optiant grantad
O expiry of two year- 25% of options granted
(O expiry of threr year- 5% of options granted
Or axpiry of four year- 25% of cptions granted

(iiy

BAawimiem tarm of aptian granted

& yaars fram the date af vaiting

(v} |Westing requirerments Contmued employrant at the vesting date
{u) |Exercise perod The axercise period shall be determined by the Board of Directors in consoriam weth the
liguidity owent,

|wi] |Pricirg Formula Caleulatian is based on fair valus method

(Wil Cprien movement during the year AHFL FSO5 - MAY T AHFL ESOS - MY 2015 AHEL FSON - 22
Particulars Forthe year | Fortheyear | Fortheyear | Fortheyear | Forthe year | Forthe year

ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31, | ended Mar 31,
2024 2023 2024 023 04 2023

Mo, of aptiens cutvtanding at the begaming af the year 562,700 7.56,000 3, 18,500 &, 00, %00 #7.20,000 "
Mar. af cptions granted during the year - - - 39,50 000
Mot of ogrions forfeined flapsed during the year {4,B00) 11,93,300) (=200 {3, 70,625)) iz, P ey
Mo, of options exerciiad during the year i " i . " .
Mo of optians outstanding at the end aof the year 557,900 5,62,700 318,500 3,18,500 3,49,375 37,320,000
Mo of stock esercisable at the srd of tha year . - - . * E
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Yes Capitad [dia) Private Limsted
Notes fpeming part of the ¢ dddaved financial s far the year ended 3131 March 2024
18l amounts in IR Lhousands, niess otherwise stated]

48 The following sdditional diciosures have been have een prepared on the basis of previous Ind A% and given in terms af Master Direction = Non-Bankng Financial Comparny = Housng Fingnce
Company [Reserve Bank) Directions, 2021, Notification na, DOA.FINMFCCC NG 120703 1001 36/2030-2 1 dated February 17, 2021 issued by BB and & geoen below:
4R.1  Summary of Sagnificant Accounting Policies
The accounting policies regarding key seas of aperatons are Sidoied as note 1-3 of Fcoountng gakoy to she Finandal Statement Tor the year anded March 31, 2024
a48.2

Farticulars Ax @ s at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

(1} Capial to Risk Asset Ranio < CRAR (%) 137,004 P 19%
it} CRAR-Tier | Capaal () 135.95% ':6&'5\!36
|iily CEAR-Tier 1 Capita £3%) 1 25% 1. 25%
i) Amaunt of subardinated debt rased as Tier- || Capital Hil il
[w} Arveans ralsed by isswe of Perpetual Debt Instrumants Hil Hal

483 Hesorve fard under section 295 of National Mauwng Bank &ct, 1987
|Particulars As ot A at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2823

Balance at the begenning of the pear
) S1atutory reserve under section 250 of the Natianal Hausing Bank Act, 1987 43,114 2518
b] Amourt of special reseive under section 36|11 Jvin] of inbame-tas Act, 1561 taker e aceaint far the purposes of statutory 1.41.035 1,16.836
reserve uitder Jection 25C of the Ml Act, 18T

c} Tatal 1,84,158 1,41, 564
Addition, appropriation) withdrawsl durng the vear

A

ab Amount transferred wager secticn 29 af the NHE Aet, 1987 17596 17,596
b Amourt of spedal reserve uncer sacticn 3611 [(uii] of Incamestas het, 1661 takan into acoount for the purpases of statutory 24,199 14,195
reserve under section 290 of the WHB Act, 1987

Less:

5] Amount appropriated fram the statutory reserve under section 190 al the WHBE Adr, 19BT7 il Hil
B Amaunt withdran from the specdal reserve ufs AB(1)[wiiiy af Income-1ax Hil Rl

A1, 1961 taken inta account which has bean taeen inta account for the purpose of pravision Ufs 290 ab the NHE A<, 1987

Halance a1 the end of the year

3| Statutory reserve ufs 230 of the National Housng Bank s, 1987 81130 43,124
Il Aot of specal reserve ufs 3611 1WIoF income -fax Act, 1961 taxen ima account Tor the durpeses af statatory reserve 165234 141035
under Section 290 of the NHE Act, 1987

c} Total 2,26,355 184,139
Thee Company has not wethdrawn any ameund from Statutary Reserve crested s 290 af the Matanal Hausing Sark Act, 1887 during the current year and praviaus
Ve

484 investments
Particulars A5 af A5 at
Mdarch 31, 2024 | March 31, X023

Walue of investments
(i} Gross vakue al imvestments

2} in inca - 500

(bl Outsde India Hil il

i} Prowdgion for depreciation

{a] Irs India E S0

o) Cutside India Kl l

[ai) Met value of investmients

[} in Indis 2 500
(] Dutsde India L] il

Mowement af provisions held wwards depreciaton on investments
1) Spenng betance

Jii) Ada: Provisiang made disnng the year s0a
[iii} Less: Write-off / written-back of excess provisions during the year .
|ra] Chosirg Dalance . 500




48.6.1

4861

4863

48.5.1

Yes Capital {India) Private Limied
Notes forming part of the consalidated financial star far the year ended 315t March 2024
|4} amounas in INR thowsands, unless atherwiss itated)

Dervatives

Forward Rate Agreement [FRA) / Interest Rate Swap (IRS)

Fartieulars As at As at ]

March 31, 024 | March 31, 2023

1) The natanal priscsal of swan ARTEETEEL Rkl L
[#) Lasses which would be incurmed if counterparties faded Lo fulfil ther abfgations uader the ARfERmBntE Hil Mil
i1} Cobateral requred by the housing finance COMPANIAL UEan entenng into swaps Mil il
vk Concerdration of eradi risk arEng fram the SWaps 1] i
(¥} The fair value of the swag ook Tl Bl
feate; There are T gderivalive Iransactians Juring the yearf previous year

Exchange Traded interes: Rate [IR) Derivative

|Particulars As ut As ot

March 31, 2024 | March 33, 2023

Ii} Motzars princigal smeuns of eschange traded IR dareatves Lneertaken during the yrar linstrumant wise) Nl Nil
(%] National grincipal amourd al exrhange iraded IF.de-r.utlmq-;uu:s.nnuirEn onverd af year {irstrument-wise) Pl 1]
liit Netional prinopal amaunt of Exchange traded |9 derwatives surs anding and nat "highly effedive” lirsrndment-wise| Hil Hil
[re] Wbbrk-tr-miarket vabis af sxchange traded (R dervaties outstanding and net “highly effactve” [nstrumens-wie| Fl sl
Note: Thire &8 na derfative trarsactions dung the year, FrEsiins year

Disclosures on risk exposure in denvatives - Qualitative Ditsclasare

Thir Company has no ransEiony e pasure in oerratives in the cusrent and previous yoar

Distiasures on risk re in detivatives - guantitative diselasure
1hrﬁ:ular: ] Currency Interest Rate

Derlvatives | Devivatives

1] Cerrvatives [Ngtional Principa Amaans) Ml il
111} Marked ta market pastions [1] Hil il
ia) Asgets [} il Ml
(k] Liahility (- [ il
(1) Credit eapasure [2] Bl Hil
liv} Unhedped expasures Hil il
Note: There sre ao denvative transastions during the current year! previous yesr.

Securitisation

| Particulars Mumaers Ampurit

L Mumber o Spenal Purpose Entities [5PV's] spomsared by the Hrusing Fraance Company ('HIC'| for securitoation Uransacliom Wil Hil
2. Tetal amount of securitsed assets as per books of the SPVs soonsored ol ]
3. Total amount of expasares setained by the HEC teweards the Minimum Retention Requitement {MAR} & on the date of balanee mil Kil
shaet

(1) CHF-balance sheet exposures towsrds credit cancentystion Ml Mi
I'II]{.Jl'l'tlalafu:rshee[exnn.sl..ﬂis.I!nw.a'ds,l.'r:drr:nm::nrrmmn ] il
4, Amcunt of expesures Lo securitisation transactions other than MRR Hil Hil
I} Off-batance shieet exposures towards credit concentraticn il Mil
&) Expasure to own saruritizatians Ni Nil
bl Exposure to thind piarty secufitisations Ml el
{1} Orrbalance sheet expuosures towseds creda gancertration Hil Hil
& EXpasuire to awn securitizationg il Mil
b} Expiesure 1o third parky secutisstions M Ml

Mate: There are Ao Securmzatan trarsachions during the curremt Ear Frésaous pear




4H.5.2

48.5.3

4854

¥os Capatal [india) Private Limited
Nates forming part of the consohdated financial ststements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(ANl amaunts in INR thousands, Unless ceherwise stated|

Details of financial assets sold te Securitisation, Reconstructsan v for Asset Beconstruction

IFIr‘II:uIlr:

s at A il

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
[i] Mo of areeurts {7 ']
(#] Aggregate value |net ol prowsions] of accounss sold 1o Secunitisation Campany / Recorstrichion Comaany il L]
(%) Aggregate consideratan Wl il
[#] Adelitieinal consideration reakzed i respect of accaunts transferred i earlior e Ml Mil
[v] Appregate gain | loss cver ne: book value Kil Kl
Mate: There are no securmizaton ransacians durng the Cirrent year prewoos year
Cetails of assignment transactaons undertaken by HFCs
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2024 | March 31, 3033
1 Mumder porp—— il Bl
i} Aggregate value (ret of provisians) of accounts assgried il wil
(in] Aggregate cansderalion Ml Wi
(| Additional ennsderation realized in respect af sccounte fransfarred in carker years i T
[iv} Aggregate gain / loss over ret bock value Mil il
Peages o assgmmmeent deal tansacthon bas been ondermben in oot frsoeal vear (Prevous Veae Bs T80 dhieands)
Details of non-performing financial assets purchased Jsold
A Detaids of non-perlorming Mnancial assets purchased:
Farticulars As at A% at

March 31, 2024 | parch 31, 2023
L {a) Numiber of accoums purchited during the vear hal P
[b) Aggropate cutstarding il il
2. () OF these, nurnber of scoounts restructureq Auring The year Hil Mil
|2} Aggregate cutstanding Hil Kil
B. Details af nar-performing firancial sssets sald;
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2034 | March 31, 2023
1, Mumbser of aeseurts sakd il Wil
I, ApEregate outstanding (1] Nil
3. ARgregate coriceration receved wil Mil
Mssets Lability Managemant
Maturity pattern of certain ftems of Assets/ Liabilities As an March 31, 2024

Uabllities | 1to fdays | Btolddays | 15dayste |Overanemonth] Over2 |Over3 manths to] Cver & months | Over 1 year ta 3 | Over 3 years ta v 5 yaars Tatal
3 days | te? Ak th [ th b 1 year Ears Syears
[eeue month] upta 3

S iciith
Dporils - - .
Darroasngs - 5,588 ARIT4T | 2R RT 0675, 7TH THAM, R AT G2 HAHLATA 50 4,593,620
Foregn =
Curransy
kabilzies
Total - 5,588 2,518 27,523 35,676 71,435 BT, 459 63,708 2 06 YR 4,53,620
Aareky
Achvances N A28 A0TEST AETHAT P bR | dnakin 12135 L1500 243307 LEAAAS T, 1350 4583226
Invesiments .
Fareign .
LRy
FEAT 1
Tatal 37418 A6 15,855 54235  S4E7H 1,987,691 3,654,008 11,18,362 631,008 | 3164491 56,0467

*The residuad maturity profile of dssets and Lishilties & cormed aut based an the extimeles ard assumptions regording behaviowal pettern of pre-paymentsdmananinies,Temewal amd Commibments,

Mare Fovegn currency Db and foreign currency sesets ane Bl




487
48.7.1

Yoz Capitsd [india) Provate Limited
Notes farming part of the consolidated financial statemants for the year ended 31st March 2024
(Al amaurts in MR thousends, unless otherwise stated)

Maturity pattern of certain items of Assetsf Liabilitios As an March 31 2023
[viabities | 1107 deys | 1014 days | 15 duysta |Over ane month] Gver 2| Gver 3 months o] Gver 6 manths | Geer 1 year 103 Over 3 years to| Ower 5 years Total

031 days | o 2 months menths & months 1 yoar yEars 3 years

[sme month) wpo 3

manths

Deposis - E - B - - - =
Borrowings - - 25,000 25,000 50,000 95,733 . - 1,960,733
Fareign - H ’ z =
ClfrEmcy
labdities
Total - - - - 25,000 25,000 50,000 99,733 - 1,995,733
Assets
Bohearioes 22,985 12585 11885 73413 773,154 1E1700 331,784 E57.580 B.O7. 741 14,87 853 43,89, 584
Irre sL e LS >
Foregn - 2 s . .
Cuarrency
aisels
Total 2358 22,585 | 12,985 73,415 | ®,20,154 2.31,700 2,31 784 8,57 445 EO7,741|  14,97,853 27,839,050

*The residual maturity profile of Aasets and Liabities s carried out based an the estimates and meampsions regarding betinvaural pattsm of pre-peyments/matuntias/renewale ard Commipments

Mone: Foreign currency labiities and foreign currency acsets are il

Exposure
Exposure to Real Eatate Sector

Categary

Asat
Mdarch 31, 7024

s at
March 31, 2023

a, Direct esposure

I} Residential mortgages-

Lendng lully secured by martgages an residential property that is or will e accupied by the Barrower o that & fented, Expasure
waoid also indude non-fund based (NFB| limins

¥ Commercial real sstate-

Lending fecured by mortgage: an commercial real estate |aflice buildings, retail spare. multiparpose commsnsal premises,
rutifamidy ressdennsd buildngs, muli tenanted commercial grernises, industnal or warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition;
cirvaloomient énd constructian, sic ], Expagure would siso include non-fung Sased L ) bmigs

- Hon Fund Based Exposure o CRE
lii} Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (ME5) & other securitised BRROSUTES
& Resigential

b. Commercial Res’ Estate

b, indirect expesure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National Houzmng Bank [NHA) s9d Housing Finance Cormrgparess [HECS)

822.0M

48,613

Hil
Nl

1514993

#8881

Tatal Exposure to Real Estate Sectar

¥, M0 583

55,869,875




4873

4.4

475

48 B
HEH1

Yes Capatal {india) Private Limied
Nates Forming part of the conschdated financial statemenis Tor the pess ended 3158 March 2024
(8l amoungs in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated]

Exposure to Capital Market
The Compary has no esposure 10 cagital marke ditectly af mdrectly in the current and previous yeat
PFarticulars As at AL at
March 31, 2034 | March 31, 2023
[§] dhrest investment ir eguity shares, corvertible bonds. conentibile dabentures and units of equity ooented mutus funds the Hil Hil
carpus of which s mat excugively investod in carparate debs
(i) advardss againgd shares / bandsy debentures or other securities or on dean basis to mbivituals For iMestTEnT in shares Hil Mil
{irchuding IPCayf ES0PS|, comveruible bonds, convertible debentures, and uras of equity-ongnted mutual Tunds
[} advances far any other purpases whiere shares o convertibie bands o convertible defientures or units of sguity oriented Nil Hil
il funds are Laken & primary security
{iv) advances far any athar purocses 1o the extent secured by the sallmeral security of shares ar corwertile bonds or corvertble Nil Hil
delbientures or unics of equity aremed mutual Tunds | e where the primany security pther than shares J convertible boncs |/
canvernide debentures [ units of egquity orented mutual funds does nat fuly cover the advances.
v decured and ursecured advances to stockbrakers and guaranteas isdusd on behalf of wadkbrokers and machet makers il Hil
{a1) boans sanctioned 10 CORPOTaTEs against the security af shares [ bonds | detientures of ather Ssecunties or on clean bass for Hil Hil
meeting promoter’s contrbution tothe equity.of new campanies in antication af Tasing retmuroes.
|wiiy Bridge loans to companies against expected eiuity News ) nsaes Mil Mil
[iil} Underwriting commitments taken up by the MBFCsin sespect of primary ssue of shares or corvertible bonds or convertible Nil Hil
dstariturey or units af squity arisrted mutaal furds
|} Fvancing (o steckbrokers for margin rading Hil Hil
[x) Al exposures 1o Alternative irmastment Funds:
11) Categary | Hil Hil
|} Categary Il il Hil
Jiii} Categary i Hil Mil
Total exposure 1o Capital Markst Hil Hil
Details of Financing of pafent company products
There.is no financing of parent company peockcls.
Details of Single Besrowar Limit [SGL) / Group Bormower Limet [GBL) esceeded by the HFC
The Campary has not exceeded the Sngle Bornower Lisnit ard Group Boerower Limit a4 preseribed by KeB,
Details af Unsecured Advances
Campany has gven the urdedesrsd advances for which dsdasure has been provided in nare.ra, 5h|
EN IO grog 5 engagad In resl estate busi
Description Bemount (¥ in % of owned
Lakhs) fund
i} Exposure to any single antity in & group angaged = real actate hutiness Hil il
i] Expogure Lo @l @ntilies in & group engaged n real estane business Hil Hil
Other disclogures
Registration abtained fram ather fnsncial sector regulstors
The Campary has not obtaired regstration froem any other Finanos sector regulator
Digclazure of Penalties impased by NHB and ather regulators Axat A at

Blarch 3L, 2024

March 31, 2023

i} Dietails of penalty levies by Matichal housag bank |{refer note 22.8.2(a))

&] Agwerse comments by the National Fausing Bank o regulatary comphances

o] Percentage of cutstandng losns granted agaimst collateral of gold wwellery to 1otal oustanding assets - The Company haa nal
granted ary loans against callateral of gold jewdtleny

wil
Ril
Hil

Hil
Hil




48.8.2[a]

4EH3

4884

LR ]

A5

A8 HE

48.8.9

AEH.10

45.8.11

Yes Capital (india) Prvate Limated
Motes farming part of the consalidated firancial statemaents for the year anded 31st March 7034
(Al amounits in INR thousands, uniless atherwite stated)

B dar s epeied awy Praady aie e SRDTTT A (TR T K PR e

Related Party Transactions
Details of all material transactions with relatied parties are datased in Mote 36 to Gnancial Statements

Group Mructure
¥es Capital |icia) Private Limiced [Ultimaie Hoiding Company)
L

ART Capital {incia) Private Limited [Parent of the Helding Campany)

de
ART Bumress and Cansumer Finance (India} Private Limited (Halding Comaany]
ke
ART Hausing Finance [India) Limited [Company)
Jd

ART Dystrdauaion (India] Prooate Limited (Subsidissy Comaany]

Thi Greap hae flled s sdheme of amalgamation with mational Cotmparty Law Tricunal (MCLT), New Uit Betwesn the halding Company, intermediats bolding campary
with the Litimata tolding Company. &5 on the date of the approval of the financial staternent, the MELT has directed the paritianers 1o s notice of the arepssss
scheme: an the concerned Regional Director, ROL, Official Liguidaior, Inzamé Tax degartment, £I6 Division of RBI-and other sectoral rogulators having sgnificant
bearing in the operations of the petitianer companies Alsa, subsigiary cormpany Le. ART Castribution |1} Pen itdl has Infiated the arocess to strixe o6 the comgany snd
It unider proosss.

Farniculins. As ai

ol amount oF inae o copomiee
Toral aimsouen of om0 e o capanes
Percer

TAREEETA
[o8 1% ]

ST
ERELREELEL L)
xuth horrowers ousionsees | )

Rating assgned by Crodil Rating Agencies and migration af rating during the year
Curing the vear, CARE has reaflirmed the rating of 'B8+' (B8 Plus) Stable Outlaak [Leng Term Facilities- Ra 50 croces] on December 05, 2022

Remuneraticn to Directors
Remunaration to Directars of the company cavered uder the Campanies Act, 2013 89d relevant arowsan of Abtounting Standard, Such details are disclosed n Mote
36 saove and wil also be disclosed in Form Mo, 8T - § s part of Direcor Regort

Mangemant
Refer 1o the Marsgement Doousson ane Analysts repoet for the relevant disciosuras,

Net Profil or Loss for the perod, prioe period items and changes in accounting policies
There are ng pror period dems that have mmpact an the current year's profit and kogs

Amnsdisn Recogndon
Thire hive Bean no instances-in which fgvernioe TECCENMION had been postpaned pending the fesclutan of signifcant uncertainties

Camsolidated Financial Statements [CF5)
Ag per Ind A5 110, Finanoal Statements are being cansalidated st halding company lous



Yes Capital [india) Private Limited
Notes farming part of the consolidated financial statemants for the year ended 31st March 2024
Al amountsin INR thousands, unless ooherwise stated]

48.8.1F Provisions and Contingencses
Hreak up of "Pravisans and Contingencies’ shown under the hesd Expenditure in Profit and Lass Accournt
Particulars As at A5 at
March 31, 2004 | March 31, 2023
1 Prowisaans far deareciation on investment nal (]
L Prowisan mae towardy indome-tan &2,351 62,530
1 Prosisan [oaecds sub standard, doubtful and las ssseis {205) {10,241)
4. Frosision for stanoard assets (with cetais boe teaser loan, CRE, CRE-8H a1c.)
Teaser |oans il Ml
CRE + B33
CRE -RH (128} {26, 265)
Cber stardard assets (10,681} |6,215)
5. Uaher provison and contingencees (with details)
Expected Credit Loss {Expenses| on Loan Camminment- ind A5 14 oz
Om Agsets hald far cale. Expected Credit Loss 1432 BO50
Or1 Dher Receivables - Expected Credit Loss 11110} 637
Gratuily, compensated sbsences Bd] 1,053
Emaloyee benedits 11,500 12,000
Prosision for esperses B935S 13 585
48813 Hreak up of loan and advances end provasions therean
Particulars Hausing laans Nan-Housing loans
As at s at As @l A at
_March 31, 224 March 31, 3023 March 31, 2024 Mharch 31,2023
Standard assets
3] Total outstanding amaunl 2148547 027 19,310,621 12.58,%11 12,582,077
b Provisions made 7 GEE 3749 14,286 13,533
Sub-standard sveets -
a) Total cutstanding amourt 1,985 21,521 T.E23 8,892
b} Prgvigions made 3,893 10943 3.520 4522
Dowbifis] assets - Categoey-i : . :
a} Total cutstanding amourm RIS 23,720 4,348 4,745
b Provsions inade L8TF 11,553 L9357 2,412
Doiibatful asiets — Category-
a| Total outstanding amipung 13,180 10.81% &0 1258
) Proisians muade 551 5,501 3,681 ERNE
Doubitful assets - Categary-in - - =
2] Total auistanting amount = =
) Prossians aade [ -
Loss assets a N
&) Tols autstandirg amaunt B30 4,075 #3n kool
b} Provisions made 8,408 4,075 3,371 L9492
Todal
a) Total outstanding amount 198628 14 209,60,755.43 12,77,054.55 13,05,002.79
bl Prowisions mace 63,337.35 B9,565.00 2683403 32,520.13
458,14  Oraw Down from Aeserves
There has been no draw down From reserves diring the yas anded March 21, 3033 {Prevsaca Yaar: Nill
488 Concentration of public deposits, advances, sxposures and NEAs
4881 Concentration of public depaaits {for public deposit taking/halding HFCs)
Particulars Ax gt Az at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023

Total pepasity of iwenty argest cepasitors

Percentage of deposits of wenty lrgest depasitors 1o tofal depasits of e HFC

The Company is non publie deposit
taking housing finance campary
and has not accepted any public

depasits during 1he current year ar

PrEVICLE yEdes
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Motes larming part of the consalidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 3024
(AN arnourts i INR thousands, urdess atheraks stated)

Concentration of loans and advances

Particulars A at A at
Sdarch 31, 2024 | Manch 31, 2023
Tots [oans and advances 19 twerdy largest borrowery 5.8A.57H 7, T8.273
[Fercentage of loans and advances bo twanty Largast barrowears to totsl advances of the HEC E3.11% 1B 21N
Concentration of all Exposure [ncluding off-balance sheet apnaLte)
Particulars As st As at
Bdarch 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Tedal eaposure Eo Paeniy largest borrowers’ Custoimens 2,85.5T8 787,168
Fedrcentage of exposures to twenty largest barrowers! custamers 10 total expasire of the HEC on barrowers/ customers 1221% 17.35%
Cancentration of KPAs
Particulars s an As At
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Tedal gdpisute to top ten NPA sccourts 24970 3% 181
Sector-wine NPAs - Percentage of NPAs to total advances in that sector
Farculars A5 at AL at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
A Hausiag loans:
L. Individuals LETR LA
& BulgeryProject loans Hil il
3. Corporaies il Hil
4. Dithers [spexify] il il
B. Non-Housing loans:
1. Indlividuak 3.08% 3.86%,
2. Builders/Praject loars Hil Hil
3, Corporates Hil Nil
4, Dthers |specify] Hil Hil
Movement of NPAs
Particulars As ar A5 &t
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
1] Met MPAs to net advances (%) 0BG DEAY
I} Movement of NPAs (Gross)
2] Dpening balance B2.092.65 1,02,078.62
b} additions during The yes Bl 41156 54,704 .03
o) Reductions during the yes 0,547 43 T4, 73107
d} Closing balance (R FESL] B2;058.65
(1H] Movement of net NRAs
&) Cipening balance 37.350.26 A7, 17847
b AdHLCs Curing the yesr 46357.09 38 439.20
cl Reductions during the year A%021.33 a8 21741
e} Clesing balance 35 286 .04 3735026
| ] Mavement of provisions for MPAs (excluding prowizions on standard assets)
a] Doening balses A4,700.0% 5495032
b Provisions made daring the year 15,454 4E 16 26483
e Write-cfFlwrie-back of excess provigions 2182610 26,505 66
d| Clotng belance 3853777 44, 105.3%




¥es Capital (India) Private Limited
PMetes furming part of the consoligsted fnancial statements far the wear ended 315t Marck 2024
|4l ameunts in INR thausands, unless otherwiss stated]

4810 Overseas asiets
Farticulars ALyt A 8t
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
The Commpany has not beld any overseas assets Hil NIl
4811 Offbalance sheet SFvs spansared (which are reguired 1o be consolidated as pes sccounting Morms)
Particulars Ay 5t s at
March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
The: Camparty dises not have any 5PV spansored which 15 reguired ta be ranscldaied o PEr ACCOUATINGE Aorms Hil Hil
AR1F Liguidity Risk Management Framuewark
fl Funding Concentration based on s Mt countemanty (hoth depasits and harrowings|
Farticulars As it Az at
March 31, 2004 | March 31,
023
Mumber of digndicant counter partes F] 1
Amaint 493,619,587 1,99.732.92
Percentage of funding cancentraton 10 total deposits WA WA
Parcentage of funding concentration to 1atal kabimes® B4.13% VA3
® Toaal liabslives eachugdes nel worth
{ii) fop 20 large deposits
Particilars A at AL at
March 31, 2024 |  March 31,
023
Total amount of too 10 depasits T, M,
Percertage of amount of teg 20 deposits 1o tetal depnsits WA WA
HITH fop 10 borrowings
Particulars As at AL at
March 31, 2024 |  March 31,
2023
Tatal amaunt of top 10 borrawings 49301587 | 18973243
Percentage of amaunt ¢f top 10 bovrowings 1o tonsl barrowngs 10000k Lm.ﬂ
fivh  Fanding Cencentration based on significant instrumentpradiet
Particulars A5 % of Tatal As at % af Tatal
March 312024 | Liabilivies® March 31, Liakalities®
2023
1Hm\uw|ng~‘.1rnm Bank 138 644 56 33.E6% 13573292 T153%
Borroinge from Matians! Housing Bard (NHB| §6, 202.00 Ta.arm A
[relat Secueities NA - LT
Subordinated Labilzies NA la,
Securitmation 1.58.773.21 3L RA%N, P,
Borgwings fram insurance Companies HREF| oY T
* Tezal liabilibes exchides net worth
] Stock et
Particulars s g As at
March 31, 2024 {  March 31,
2023
Commercial papsr gs 8 percentage of total Pubke Furds M, NA
Coenmercial paper us 3 percantage of tosal liakilies A MA
Commercial paper ai g percentsge of [olal assets A& [
Pan convertible debentures [ariginal maturity of lpws than ane vear) as a peroentage of tatal public funds N& Ma
Wan eonvertible debesures {argmal matarity of ks than e year) o a percentage of 1atal Nabiities LTS Iy
Nom corvertible debenturas {orgnal maturity of kess than ane ear| as a percentage of totsl assets M, tid
Dther short term labilties 353 percentage of total puble furds T Na
Other shart term labikies a5 a peroentage of total liahilnes® A8 04% iR
\Lither shart term Gabiitios a5 8 perrentage of tatal amets 4,13 L.B0%

* Tatal kabibties excludes net warth
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Nates forming part of the consolidated financial satements Tar the year ended 315t March 2024
(Al amaunts in INR thoussnds. unbess acherwise stafed)

Institutionsl set-up fior liguidity risk Management

Tha company has an Azt Lisaiity Managemgn Committae [ALCO] ta manitar aasel liabslity mismatches 1o snsire that thereis no imbatances. o FACERShvE concentralion on the sther side af the
Balance sheer, The SOmRANY mantaing a judicogs mik of berrowings in the fomm of Term Loans, Aefinanps, Capital Market Instruments; Secuntimation, Warking Capital and cantirwes 10 diverify its
source of borowings with the PMPNAEE on longer tenar barrcwings. The company has diversified me of nvestarslenders which ineludss Banks, Naticnal Housing Bank. Cevelopmenrd Finaneial
InERitution, Mutual Funds, Insurance Companies ete

The: Liguidity Risk Maragement \LRM) of the company & governed oy the LAR Palicy sppraved by the Board: Thy Auseq Liabity Committes (ALED) b respansible for Imglementing ang mALOnNg the
liguigity tisk menagemnent strategy of the company w linp Wit i3 frsk management abjectives snd EPSUTEs apherence 1o the risk telerance/limis set by the Board

Refer nate no.a of Fnancials statemerits,

Ladns against security of singhe prodyct - Bold jewalieny
Refer 1o 1he rote np, &[d) of Loans.

Loans sgainat security of shaves

Refer io the note ma, Blel al Loaas

Breach o covenam

Phe Corepany bas i M1y uistances of breseh ol ervemant oof Toai av wtbedd o bk g fhe currern il iy i vegss.

Dechasure for comparisan between provisions TRGUINed under IRACE snd Impairment sllowances made under nd A5 105

As ar March 31, 224 R in thousands
Asaet Clazsification e per RBI Novma | asset classifies | Grom Carrving | Loss Allowances | fies Carrying | Prowisions Gifference |
ten as per ind AS| Amount as per | [Pravisions) as Amount required as | batween Ind A5
109 Ind a5 requined unger per MACE 109
Ind A5 108 narms prowisions and
IRALP norms
(1} 12} [2) [4) [5i=(33-{4} (] 171 = [8)-{g}
Perfarming Assers
Sardar Stage 1 a3.54,722 15 537 4317,785 1578 23,5955
Sage 2 01,333 15,247 14,546 165 15,122
Subtotsl A4,04,555 52,724 43,53 731 13,143 19,081
MNon-Performing Asnets {NPa)
Substandard Stage 3 4,807 13,412 16,395 4,471 5.1
Doubtful - upea 1 yoar Stage 3 12,964 5833 130 3241 2537
1t 3 years Stage 1 11,382 fe21 11.%&1 8,553 1068
Mare than 4 years Hage 3 .
Submatal far daybul 24,346 15454 12,891 11,794 3,561
Liass Stage 3 9671 GEn - %60
Subtotad for Nis, 73,824 38,534 35,286 25,936 12,600
Other iterms such a Euarantees, loan cammaments, ste which & 0 the soape of Ing ag Stage 1 315645 2525 1311 - 525
MR bt net scisred unded  currenl  ncame Recogndion, Asse Clatificatien ang Stage
Presasioning {FRACE niovrns Sy ) ) s
Subtaral
Tatal Stage 1 46, 70,368 39 462 A6, 3,507 12,978 16,484
Hage 7 50,133 15,287 34,046 185 15122
—t | ol
Stage 3 73824 38,595 | 35,186 15,935 12,602
Teal 47,540,425 43,7287 A700,135 39,078 54,008




Yes Capetal [india) Private Limited
Nates farming part of the consoid fimancial 11 ts for the year ended 315t March 2024
A8l amagunts in NR thoussnds, unless ctherwise stated)

{21 Break-up of {11F} sbeve (Outstanding public depesits inclusive of mterast sccrisd thereon but nat peid]

[} inthe farm of Lnseoured debentures

[e] In the tarm of partly gecired debenrtures e dobenturne whars thers s shartfall in the value of secunay

As ar March 51, 3025
Asaer Classification as per R Moz Asserchassilica | Geoss Carrving | Loss Allowsnces | Moy Carryimg Provisions THferenee
el gs per Ind A% | Amsowonas per [Proviaione] ae Al required ds per| Briween Ind A5
I I A5 mequired under TRACT noews. W
Ind A5 109 provissons anid
IRACE nunms
) @ ) @) G ] 0= (4-46)
|Performing Asses
Starchand Stag | 1.353,643.25 i, 7ML A1, 58, 51508 (ETCAN 25,668 4
Stape 2 37.154.33 13,5001 s 25,5467 (S [LRTTES)
Subtoal ALZ, 608, 58 S0 ET0LR2 A1 AL AET. 75 13,300.51 37,065 32
Men-Pedomuing Assess (NPA)
b tanidard Sagn: 3 Wi A12.53 1316477 14,4776 B LI THELHY
Lrombitul - up i | yeae S 2740714 1395002 498 14 AT TAHHL2Y
11 3 yars Seagr 3 TR 10 Gy 8,904 % T 0 [RUAT
Sl tham 1 years St 3
subaotal Tor dolsfal 45,574 86 BT 12402 50 14, 0112.47 0048
L aosa . Stape M 0T 20 [ERE el [ISE il
Sulsiotal foe NPA EL030.65 4,0 37,350, 26 M, L1 19,967, 74
i dther merne arh as puarantees, loan comemibnesty, eef whuch are u the Ll s of il A% LY 5"}#‘ 1 ] 2150 255550 2201540
but nut covered  wnider custenn Inconie Becogranon, Asser { lesaficanon and Prowasiennygy Stape 2
(TEALT s Siupe 3
bl
Tonal Swage 1 44,17, 45504 066 43,768,510, 3% 13,061, 6% 25,ETUT
Srage 2 7, 035.55 e 23,5M.67 13062 13, 4. B4
Rr;r ] Hi1, 5% Q5 A4, 700 3% 37,550, 3% 24,4061 ]
Tanal A5, 50, 58502 WPN‘LT! 44,539,076 51 A7 M312 50245 50
Schedube to the Balance Sheet af an HFC A at March 31, 2024 Aa at March 31, 7023
Particilars Amount Armotint Arraunt Armunt
Cuitstanding Owerdue Outstanding Cwerdue
Liablities side. 5
[1) Loans and advances avaied by the HFC indusive of inferest aoonued therean but aot paid:
73] DOebentures Spoured
Unrsecured
\atner than faling within the meanng of pubike depasit]
b Deferred Credits ~ N
fey Term Loars 254 p4Y 1,94, 73297 -
gl Inter-corparate loans and borrawings
fel Cormmercial Paps
if} Publke Depasits
(@) Other Loans (Cash cradi, Securitization and Subordmated Liabdities] 1,58,773.2 -




Yes Capital {india) Private Limsted

Mates foeming part of the consoldated financial statements for the year ended 315t March 2024

|l amigaants im INS thousands, unless otherwise sratad|

Particulars

amaunt Qulstanding as st March
31, 2024

Amount Outstarnding &5 at
March 31, 2023

Assets side

{a) Secured
ib) Unsaeured

|i] Lease musets inchiding lease rertals under sundry debtars
{a) Fimarcial lease
|b} Qperating lease
{ii] Stock-on hire includng hire charges under sundry ceblons
|&] Azsets.on hire
() Repossessen Assets
lil OEber bedns counting towards asset finanong activities
{a) Loans whene assets have bean repossessed
|b} Lpans ather than {a) abive
15| Break-up of Investments
Currant Imvestiments
1 GQuoted
fii Shares
|a&] Equity
[} Preferance
[#] Debentures and Bords
{i4] Limvits of miaual funds.
(] Gowernment Securities
{v) Others
2 Unguited
11} Shanes
|2] Equity
|l Prederence
[#] Dehentures and Bords
[ Units of mytoal funds
[ Gouernment Seouritees
wh Othery
LONE Term myexments
1 Quated
|i] Shares
|a] Equary
(&) Preference
[n] Debenturas ard Bonds
(i) Linits of munual furds
v} Gowernmerl Securites
v Dehers
2 Unguoted
1] Shares
[a} Equéty
[t Preference
{ii} Debentures and Bonds
il Uinits of mutual Turds
i) Goarnmant Securities
) Cehars

[8} Break-up of Loans and Advances ingluding bills recervables [other than those inchuded in [4) below]-

{4) Break up of Leased Assets snd stock an hire and other pstets counting towards asset financing activities

44 75 683

35,638T5AE
F10888.9

{E] Barrowsr group-wise classification of assets financed as in [3) and (4] above:

Category

Amount net of provisiens

as al March 31, 2024 az

Aenoent net of provisions

at March 31, 3023

Secured Unsecured

Total Secured

Unsecuned

1. Related Fartms
ta) Submchariey
|b} Companes in this same group
|&) Cahir retated pariies

1 Daher than related parties

501980

3ELM1

5.02.920 ¥

3881 541 34,68, 535

FRIERFL]

34,568,855

103,74

Total

43,84.921 -

4384531 ELNCRCE]

705,774 41,71,669

1) Investor group-wise classification of all investments [current and leng term) in shares and securities (Beth quated and unguated):

As at March 31, 2024

A5 ot March 31, 2oud

Categary
fair value ar HAY

Market Value / Bresk up or

Rook Walue [Net of Prowsicens)

Market Value J Break up of Tair
value or MAY

Book Value [Net & Frovsions|

1 Aeiated Partins
|a) Subsdiares
|&) Companias in the sams group
[£] Cther related partss

2. Orther than refated parties

Total

[8) Other information

Particulars

Amount Qutstanding as at March
31, 2034

Amount Cutstandng as at
March 31, 2023

[} Gross Nor-Performing Assets

la} Relared parties

(] Cuher than refated paries
[} Met Non-Performing bssets

{al Related parties

{i} QOcher than relmed partses
[#] Assets apquared in satinfaction of dabe

T304

55, T80
63 455

B2, 060

17250
48,109
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Motes farming part of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(All amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwise stated)

49 Financial Ratios

30 Earnings in foreign Currency

Ratin Numerator Denominator Current period | Previous L variance
Capital to risk-weighted assets rng Equity share capital & Cther equity risk-weighled assets 4.4% 6,34 29 777
Teer ICRAR Fquity share capital & Other Cauity risk-weighted assets 445 6,34 29.77%
Tier IHCRAR O] risk=-weighted assets {001} () -29.29%
Liquidity Coverage Ratio Cash and cash equivalents & Investments Fingncial Liabletes 037 1.31 SR

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Revenue from operations 20,723 201,402

51 Assets pledged as security

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Mon current

Financial assets

Investment 4,42, 880 4,42 880

Total assets pledged as SECUrity

4,42,880 4,42,880

52 Revenue fram contracts with customers

Indian Accounting Standard 115 Revenue from contracts with customers 1“Ind AS 115"}, establishes a framewark for determining whether, how much and
when revenue is recognised and requires disclosures about the nature, amaunt, timing and uncertainty of revenues and cash flows arising from custamer
contracts. Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognised through a S-step approach:

(i) Identify the contract|s} with cu stomer;

(i} Identify separate perfarmance obligations in the contract;

{iii) Determine the transaction price;

[iv) Allocate the transaction price to the performance sbligations; and

{v] Recognise revenue when g perfarmance abligation is satisfied

Disaggregation of revenue
Revenue arises mainly fram membership fee, room reven ue, food and beverages and other aperating revenue as detailed balaw:

Description Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale of services
Membership fees and subscription 106,396 1,04,709
Room revenue BB,627 85,605
Food and beverage revenue 2,059,846 2,212,567
Other operating revenue 20,861 17,931
Total 4,25,730 4,30,813

Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers

Description As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Current liabilities
Deferred membership fees 35,729 48948
Advance from customer 10,585 12,400

Advance from members

Receivables

Trade receivables 5,908 3,866
Less : Allowances for daubtful debts - =
Net receivables 5,908 3,866

Total 40,405 57,482
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Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities
The following table shows how much of the reviue recognised in the current reporting period relates to

Description Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Revenue recognised that was included in contract liabilities at the beginning of the 22,264 20,393
year

Performance obligaticns satisfied in previous years

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities along with significant changes in contract liabilities
Ind AS 115 also requires disclesure of major changes on account of revenue recognised in the reporting period from the contract lability balance at the
beginning of the penod and other changes, as summarised below:

Description Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year £1,348 67,132
Less: perfarmance obligations satisfied in current year (4,04,869) (4,12,882)
Add: amount received during the year. 3,89.834 4,07.0a7
Total 46,313 61,348

The contract liabilities primarily relate to the advance consideration received from customers for the servives to be rendered for which revenue is
recognised over time.

Remaining performance obligation
Applying the practical expedient as given in Ind AS 115, the Company has not disclosed the remaining perfarmance obligation related disclosures for
contracts as the revenue recognized corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the entity's perfarmance completed to date.

Reconcile the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
There is no adjustment made to the contract price of the contract and hence the revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss is in agreement to
the with the cantracted price under the Contract.

The Company, Archana Luthra (AL}, Vipin Luthra {V1), and DalT Hospitality {India) Private Limited (DHIPL) had entered inte an agreement of Share
Purchase Agreement (“SPA") for the sale by AL and VL of their entire shareholding in the Company e DHIPL at the Purchase Price mentioned in the SPA.
As per the transaction undertaken in the SPA, the amount of 9,22,26,816/- {Rupees Nine Crore Twenty Two Lakhs Twenty Six Thousand Eight Hundred and
Sinteen Only) payable by Westhury Hospitality Put Limited [WHPL) to the Company has been taken as doubtful debt and has not been factored in while
arriving at the purchase consideration for the shares of AHMPL payable by DHIPL to AL and VL and which if repaid by WHPL to AHMPL, in whale or in part,
the eguivalent of which is agreed to be paid by DHIFL to AL and VL as an additional consideration under the SPA. Based on the said agreement the
Company believes the said amount if non recoverable from WHPL will be recovered from DHIFL and hence there will be no impact on the financial
statement of the Company,
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DWring the gravious year urder sevews, a FIR s filed by C81 on the baus of which an ECIR and theraafter chargesheet was registered by the Directorate of nfercement under the grovsion af tne
PMLA At 2002, relating bo @ ourpoed conspirscy between Aprd - lune 2048, against the Company ane tha promaters af the Cisnpany regarding a laan araunting to R, 600 croras sanctianed
by Mefs [ewar Housing Firantce Urnited JOHFL) in favaws of the one ol the group company namely DOOT Lirban ventures Private Limited {DUVPLL Subsequantly, post the Balanci Sheet date, the
Coiriany has recemved Pravisionsl Aftachmant Oroers in refation to the ECIR which includes sitachment of bank sceownts, balance in Fiosd Deposits, Mutual Funds. of she Company

The msnagerant of the Camoany is puesiing legsl arocesdings and fidly topperating with the Investigative agencies 10 prove s stand and is confident of dealing with the outcome af the
chargeshest. Tt believes that the allegatiors levelied in the FIR and chargeshest are nnd-mantanabie, Pending the uncertanty over the dutcome af this FIR and chargesheet, currently, The
FanegEment of the Company does nat fareses 3 utuation that may feeult in any impact on the conslidated Ind A% finarcial statements of the Company

The notes to accounts of Ambience Hospitality Private Limited states that:

A First information Report (FIR) was registerad by the Central Buresu af investigatian (C31), ECG-1.an 7ih March 2000 an the tess of whach an ECR and theraahar 3 Cnarge sheet &y wall 3s
supplermentary charge shest win alwo fisd by the Directarate af Enforcement under Sectian 3 and 4 of the Prevention of Maney Laundering AL, 7002, relating to & purported conspitecy
between April — June 2008, aganst DOIT Urban veatures Priate Limited CANVPLL Margan Credils Private Uimited (Uitimate Holding Camgany) and the Promaters of the Company, intergia, m
respect of a Loan amaunting 1o Rs GO0 crores which was sancuoned by My Dewan Housing Finance Limited (DHFL) Te Surbian Smar Infraventures {india) Private Limated (Formerly known as
DET Urban Ventuses (indial Frivate Lenited] in the sanier yaars, Subsequently in the same vear, the Company had recened Pravisional Artachment Orders in relation 1o the above EXIR which
ncludes attachmens of bank sccounts, balance i Fued Depasits, Mutsal Funds, of the Company, 15 SE0s0E0es,

O account of above stated ‘egal proceedings the company had filed & wril pataion with Delhi High Court o0 Augus: 4, 2023 and subsequently an order approving the defreesng of the Bank
Accounts & Balance in Feeed Depasits was passed by the Hon'bln Colet vide arder dated Seprember 37, 2023

O Balance Shoet iy

Particulars Az st hs at
Bstharch200d | 3istMarch 7073

ON balance sheet pxpasure Hil Hil

Financial Guarentee as & % of total cif-balance shewl expasure Hil Hil

Mon-Fingncial Guarantee as o% of total off-balance shest exposure Hil Nil

O balance sheet exposure to averseds subsidiaries Kl N

Letrer ol Combort issued to amy sulisidiary mil Nil

Business Ratio

Particulars s bt As at
 BstMorch202e | SLMIhI0R

Redurn on Equity [Rok} o2 0.10

Rarturn an Axsots (Rak) i 0,01 0,06

et Profit per employes M& M

Disclosuro of Penalties imposed by RBI, other regulators and directions on the basis of inspection reperts ar other A at A at i

adverse findings Aax March 20024 158 March 2023

| Detalls af penalty bevied by SE81 Hil [T}

i} Achverse comments by the RBI on regulatory compliancas fail il

iii} Parcsntage of sutstanding lcans granted againet eailataral of gold jewellery 1o tatal autstanding assets - Th Campany Wil Hil

has nat granted any leans against collateral of gald jewellery

Merger Appication

Thie Group has fiked a scheme of amalgamation with-National Campary Law Tribunai [NCLT), Mumba and Deini between the heolding Campany, mtermediate holdsg company with the Ultimate
Helding Company, As an the date of the approsal of the financial statermnent, the NCLT has directed the pelizicaers 1o serve notice of the proposed scheme on the concerned Regional Director,
ROC. Official Liguidatos, incame Tax department, CIC Divsion af i and DIner sectoral regulatars hevng aigrifxart bearing in the ooerations of the petmoner companie. The Company fas
secordingly complied with the dirsctione gaen by the NCLT and a corpliance report is subimisted 1a RCLT for further deection.

The Gratp Uitmare Hoiding Company has fed a scheme of amalgamation with Natonal Company Law Tribural [NCLT), Rew Delhi and Mumbal, Virtue of scheme of smalgamation VES Capital
{indis] Brvate Linited [Uimate Holding Company) wil became 1008 sharehalder of the ART Finance (India] Private Limited, Ind Globad Securities Limitied, Himakaya Finieasa Private Limited,
ART Special Stuations Finance [india) Limited, ART ¥enture Finance {india) Private Limited, ART Real Assels Finarce |india) Pyt Lid, ART Fimancial Services (indi) Private Lmited and ART
Climate Finance [India) Pravate Limited, on elfectve date as may be approved By NCLT, infimation of fiing of the Scheme has been mede to Reserye Bank of irdia, Delhi and Maribai by YES
Capital {India] Private Limied. fis on the date &f sgaing of the financais statement af the Company, the scheme of amaigamation is pending ‘fafigre Mational Campany Law Tribunal (NCLT). New
Delh ard Mumbai for passing of order

The nates to accounts ol ART Insurance ventures |ndia) Pyl LLe. whith are subsidianes of the Comgpany, Stales that: During the Year, there has been no bualsess activaies = the Company, In view
ol the uncertainty associated with the Futurs. the clasng baiance of te receivables and payaboes standing n the boaks of accounts have sither been sestied or adfustad in the subsaguunt period
befare the appraval of these Fnancial statements, The accounts of the Campany, however, carbnued 10 be prepared on gaing concern Rssumption since the mansgement i hopeful of reviving
the coerations of The Compary w rear future. Accordingly, these hnancial STALEMEnts DO NaL INClude any sdjuslineniy resajing L the fecaverabdity and claasificatiors of #ssete and liabiltos thad
rmay be necessary IF the entay s unable ba continue &5 @ RENE TaOnCem

Whils, The notes to accounts af ART Indks Faundation, a subsigiary, states that: There has been 3 sgnificant decrease in the Dusiness attivites of the Comgany. In vew af the wnceftainty
assaciated with the future, the closing balanee of the recanables and payables ganding n the books af sccounts Nave emher been settied o adjusted in the subsequent period befare the
aparoval of these financial statements. The sccawnts of the Cormany, howeves, cantinued to be prepared on gong contern assimptan since the mansgement is hooeful of sevving the
operations of the Campany in near future. Ancordingly, thiss financdl statements 6 nat include ary djustments refating Lo the reconrsbibty and clasyificatians of assats end abdities that may
ba necessany 1f the entity s unable Lo continue a5 3 going concern.

Company as per the CIC Ssstar Directan updated on O5th Ottabar, 3020 drection mantaned functona welsite, contaning detaits of annual reports & annual accounts

A thee group companies under the CIC o conslidsted in the Consolidazed firancials Statemant s per the master deection - S0 [Revsrve Runk) Diractions. 2016 updared an 05tk Octaber. 2000
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¥es Capital {india} Private Limited
Notes farming part of the consolidated financial statzements for the year ended 31st March 2024
(&l amounts in INR thousands, unless otherwize stated)

Prosisions and Contingendies
Prowisions and Contimgendies shall be p e as under:
Broak up of 'Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the Profit and Loss Accownt As at | As at
Aist March 2024 | 31st March X023
Pravisions for degrecistion on Investment
Pravision towards MPA
Pravishon macs tawerds Irsams e
Other Prouision and Contingencess [with detads) -
Prayisian for Standard fssets - -
Conteniration of NPAs
{Amount n EXposare as a %
“000's) af total aniets
]
Total Expeaure 1o top Tve N aucownts il il
Srverseas Aaseta [for thoae with Joing v and Sulesidiaries 1
Fami of (i Josnt VentuneSaubsidiary Dﬂlﬂﬂmrll—[ Country Total Assets
the IV
= Hil
Dartails of Loans and Advances to Related Parties
Type of Borrower Ais ot 30st March 2024 As at 315t March 2023
Percentage o
Amount of loan
or agvance im the s bomal Loman Amount of loan of advanos in Bencantagy 22 tha total Loaee
ol b and Advances in i of Ioan suistanding and Adwances im the natare of
—— tha nature of loans
lnans
Pramoker
[lirecioey
KMiPs
Helated Farties
Tatal a . . T
Comp 15 o ANW s other related inf 2
Particulars As at Asat
=L ] .—:&L‘-"ﬂ———
ANW as & W ol Hisk Weighted Aisety AT AR%. A7, 10%
unrealived appreciation in the bocks vaiug of quoted iFvestments 2,114 1,050
deminution in the aggregate boak value of quated investrants = =
Leverage Hatio "
I & im other CICs
Ax ak Ay ok
13t March 2024 315t March 2023

&) Tetal amawnt representing any direct & indirect capital samributian made by sne CIC in ancther CIE {ircluding name of
£nla]

Az 71,560,000 (In Thousands)

As: 71,560,000 (In Thousands)

Bl Number af CICs with thair rames wherain the direct o et capital camtribiutan exeseds 10% of Owned Funds

1) ART Capital India
Linined {1005 Subsdiary|

Private

2) ART Business and consamer
finarce |India] Private Lemited
| 10655 step down subsidiary|

3) ART Corporate Finance {India)
Private Limited {100% step down
subsidiary}

1) AAT Capital india Private

Lamited |{100% Subsdiary|

2] AAT Busmess and consumer
finance (indka] Private Lemited
[100% step down subsadiary}

3) ART Corparate Finance {india)
Private Limited (100% step down
subsidiary)

£] Mumber af CICs with thelr rames wherein the direct or indnect capital contributian is less than 10% of Owred Funds

Hil

The notes 1o sccounts of ART Housing Finance(india) Limsed, subsidiary of the campany states the below

Dhaclossire of frauds as per IWELI (NIR DRSS Policy Corcular Mo %2 200519 daed 05 Fehrsry, 2009
There was Wil fraud detected during the current financial year and oravisut Financad s



Yes Capital {india) Private Limited
Hetes farming part al the lidated financial stat: ts for the year ended 3ist March X024
1Al smaunts in INR thousanos, unless otherwise stated)

687 Impacy of COVID-D

The extent b2 whach COVID <19 will continue te impact the compary's operations and financial metrics will depend on Future developments, which are uncertsn, Increass in repe rates ao
reflects 1he overall stress on alfordabie segment cuslamers . Hence company fas used the principles of prudence o prowide Far the impact of pancemic on the finardal statement specilicaly
whilg assessing the expected creds ioss on financial ssets by appiing managemant overlsys approved Dy Boarg of Directors, Tha has resulted in an additional prowision af Rs. 41,262 thousands
1ill the perod March 31, 2024 [Previous vesr: By 55,900 thavsands). Campany wil clodely maniton the imaberal changes to future economic conditions and ressitant imgact, if any, on espected
Credil fOsE Provisions.
Disclosure a3 required in terms ol peodae om Resolution Framework - 300 Resoluton of  Coaded9 related drress of  Individuals and Small  Businesses BRI
I3LMORSTRAEC. 1121, 04 J48/2021- 22 dt. May 05, 2021

_Typ-eol' E " i chanwilicd an Stumbard O Ay, uggregaie | O (A] amoung O (A wimmoaims pasl Exposur o sccounts <hussificd

harreaes cansequent 1o implementation of el writien o il by the bosrowers ar Sandard
resodution plan - Position as ac 50 Sepa 21 that shpped ino | 3se March 23 1l Mwr March 25 conscqweal i
MEA mplemeniation of
disrng el 3 resodution plas - Position as al
March 23 Sksr March 23

lersomal 5450150 ] 194,51 3354 IAZTIAL

I RETIEY

aeporare

pawseme

L wlich

MRMEs

Lhers

[Tt 56050 57 [ 5.543.54 26,3234%

* s dehmed i Secton 1T ol the lasuly oy anil J‘h.u.'uwlq: Caude, 2HD
4 Prsonal Lant e hules swetgaps: backeal hisssug ol other lans. e mchidos ban principal vakes cnly

G8.5

Transfer of financial assets that are devecocgnised in their entirety where the Company has continuang myohement

The Cornpary has not transhered any sasets that are derecognised in their entirety where the Company contindes te have cantnuing mvaleement,

Changes in liabdtsy arivng lram financing activities

The Company does rat have amy finaning actvites which affect the capial and asiet structune of 1The Company withaul The use of cash ahd Cash equivalents

Transfer of Financial assets
Assipameni Beal;

Az-per veven of dealy, since substantial fsk and rewards related b theds avsety are frariferced 18 the buyer, The sl have been decrecagromed fram the balance sheer. The management has
evaluated the impact of assignment tranaseticas dara dunng h vear fae ik Butiraie modal, Based on the future Business plan, the campary Businest model remains to hold the assets for

callecting contractual cash flows

The Tainle bedow SUmemarnises the carryng amaunt of the derecogaited financial aSoes measured Al amortied cosl-and The gain on derecognitian,

Fariculars LT% 1 As &l
Plar 3L, 2024 Mar 3L, 2023
Lty amnieant of derecognnsed Bianoal assets 518845 4,01.950
L arrying; Gain from dereoogmitem BE 238 14 854

Mate: Asgament transaction carried out in current financial year for Az 2,73 578 thousanos {Prevous Fear: NiL|

Expoiure 1o Capital Market
Particulars Asat 315t March 2029 | As ot 31 March 2023

CHrect invagirment n aquily shanes, convertible bords, convertible debentures and urds of equity arientsd mutuel funds the 113,508 2.85.899
vorpus of which b5 ro exibalvely imvesled in corporate debit
Achaarcen sgainst shares ) bonds [/ debentures or other seourites or on clesn basis 1o sndviduaks Tor imestment n shaees|
(mchuding IPCs f ESOPs), conwertible bonck | convertible debentures | and waits of equity-criented matusl funds:
Audbeardel Tow gy ciber purpees whdne shares or conyertible bonds ar convertible debentures or units of eguity oriented -
ruTaal funcs are taken a8 primecy seourity,
Advances for any OIMEr purpases to the sditent secured by the coliateral security af shares o convertible bonds ar . *
conuertinle sebertures of units of equity arented mutual funds ip whare the primane securdy other than shares
convertible bands f convertible debentures / umits of eguity onented matual furds “does nat fully cever the advances,
Secured and Unsecured sdvances to stockbrokers and guarantees issued on behalf of stockbroiers and marked makers: *
Lodns sanctigned o cofporales against the security of shares | bonds | debéntures or other setunlies or oo clean basis for = =
MEETIng JrodmoUEr'§ CoONCrbalion (o The equity af new companies o anhicpatian of tasing résources
Bricge wana [ companio againat expected equay flows [ issues; -
Underwriting commitments 1aken up by the NEFCS ) respect of primary issue of shares or Convertible Doacs or convertibie = -
debentures or ymits of eguity oriented mutusl funds
Financing to stockbrobers for mangn trading
Al gyt (o Alternalyve ireestment, Funos =
|ajCategory - |
|bif Catagary - i
[e} Category - i
Al Eepasures o ‘Venture Captal Funds |both registerad and um'gnrlrudl

Total Exposure to Capital Markel 3,153,508 2,85,E99

Registration cbitaimed from other financial sector regulatons
Thee Company has pol cbtained registration from any ather FNance secior reguiator




s Capial (india) Private Limted
Motes forming part of the i il 51 for the year ended 31 March 2024
(AR amounts s INR thousands, wnless otherwtie Slated|

During he year, ART PP (india] Fvt L3 bhe subsdanes of o company has applied for strike oM en dited March 31, 2033 and hive jubeitted reiesant detamiski with the Segisrar of
Carmpanies (ROCL New Deihi. 45 on tha dibe of the financials, te apgeoesl trom B0C | geaited

Cuuring the year. Srandzanvas wal ar Py Lid dnd Art insurance LUP tha sutnidiaries of the company as sgshed or strke off b dated Wareh 31, 2023 sod have sutsnitted rbvant Socpments
with thie Agitras of Companies (ROC), New Delhi. &5 6n the date of tha Snanciaki, the spproval from ROC & receved for the sirkes off

The: aabes to acoounts of ART inda Fousdation states that: The Company has sooumulsbed brites ot 4l 31 March 2024 and it aet werth haa arcded The financiyl statements, howsver, hawe
Fin preared LS e going fancern banis of acoounting, baked on the expected powih oppomnithes oy per the Sutune businels plass a=d the conbinuing cemmiiment &y the uitimate holdng
compainy L extend financial supgon 1o the Congady for meetng the chlgations expected 1o arise in the foresestie future

Desing 1 pear, the Company Pad senl & feques ko s prowp companies lor wavmr of Inberest on the inber Covporme Depoalt (K00] taken by the Compeny, on acooust ol ongoing iligstion
el the promolers @ groue Company and abo COVID pandemic. Baed on the reques! sl [ha respectve board of directors of the poug compsnies accanted the et and deridad tn
priuerde ywavec ul e enlte iteresl UM SCCOUM OF INE 300WE, Inberes] &xpenaes amounting 0o Ry 57,9617 thoasamds (Prevous Fear A BEES9 74 thessanth) were nod acccantid i the
sl

CUPL o 12002003 and 17.10.3023 enbered inlo Loan Gosure and Resshution Agreament with Firamal Capial & Honing Financa Limited (“FCHIL) porwant i o loan agieenest with
Uewan Howing Firants Corparation Lmied |"DHFL7) now knows 25 #iraeal Capital & Hasiicg Fnance Limiled, threogh insokency process scgquired) is the skl agreement Cowpaity bar
tecome cosfinmation’ party beig “Pledger of crginal loan tranksction documenss aod has agroed o the terms of the waid agrewment whereby the Company hin ssesiment in Ambience
Howpitaity Presate Limited whose shares are pladged againat koan takien by PUVIL will be brsrafemed 1o the party aa docicad by POHPL

mw&mnrdlhwmﬂmmnamdmwthqmwﬂmmunmw 17102023, Pramal Capial & Vcusing Finsece Limited dausd Ko Duoes Cartificats dated
13.02.7003 Tor iosure of koan and aso reased ol the charges aganst rongags proserties and pledg tharet

T Company |5 not daclared a willlul defaciter by 3ry hank or linancisl insHeution ar ather enders

In the opinion of the managuesent, @l the corrent asials are realicable at the values Sspicted in the finandlas andl proisions hawe baes msss for 2!l lrovwn lizhiktes.
The Company had no TEns#T. wilh the stnack ofl Companies under Section 248 or 550 of the A,
o proceedings ware initiabed o pending against the Compasy for bolding any benami Eroparty under the Benami Trarcactians {Prohisibion) Act, 1988

Theve are na ultimane benaficianes to whom the Comgary has lentinvesed o pciieid any fund during the yes within e meaning of Foreign Exchange Mansgemens Act 1959 and
Pravention of morey Laundering Al 1002

Trabfis witre 1z transachon n the Cosgany which b not recorded in 1h booi of serounts thal Fat been surrendered or dsckosed o income during b year in the G sxmsmnks under the
Iewome Ta Act, 1961 deoch s, searth or sursey or amy cthar rabevant provisions of the income Tas Act, 1961,

‘I'Iu(hmnmnnuru:tmu,mmmm-hmamwhmmmm—dmmnmnuumpu
TMl.’-mnmdmmrmwuﬂrwwmnncumaup«mm.mmmﬁwmm Seurity disckoure s aot applcabie,

The Compaty has of boruwed sy money Tom any tiue of secerities and long term Dormewings from Banies o linancial institstions and hence utlitation for the specific purgase for
wtich the Fends were raived is not apeficabis

ﬂu-tmmhxnulmmbumh‘-lmmwuwnunhlmmnm-mumﬂmmmnmmmmwnumlm&wh
Company.

Thee Ciom pasrsy Mk it Waded in crypto cunmency of wimud| currency during the yaar

Thit comparty b:md*mﬂwmhwl{bml!ncfmmzdmcmmm_zuum.nmhmimm“nu«hmm|m;mrmuuammg
laryin's présritied wnder the dct

Aol amoents ks than INE 510 o appednng in e Bnancial a0 g ko p o i Thionasds
Fraviaus yiar's figures have beon regroussed, re-amanged ard reclassfied wihsnne necessary o confirm to the cuirenss vear slassficasion as par Ind AE

For & M M P & Compary For and on bebhail of the Bosrd of Brecion of
Chartered Azcountants il Capital (incial Frivate Limited

Frm Regstration No. 120436wW
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